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Strategic Report on the Financial Statements

Business strategy and objectives

The Company is part of the Kleinwart Hambros group which also includes the Channel islands bank and trust company and the Gibraltar
bank. These firms provide Wealth management services 1o clients in their locat jurisdictions and intemational clients.

On 6 November 2017, the Company acquired the whole of the banking business of Kleinwort Benson Bank Limited ("KBBL") from its
immediate parent company. This completed the legal integration programme of activity to bring fogether the UK banks under a single
“Kleinwort Hambros" brand. In 2019 the Company completed the final migration of clients from the legacy Kleinwort Benson banking platform
onto the combined Kleinwort Hambros platform, combining both banks’ tegacy operations on one core system.

The board sees opportunities to build on the experise and products of both firms, from banking, wealth planning and fiduciary services, to
investment management and structured products.

Measurement and performance / KPI

{In GBP m) . 2019 208
Operating income {net, excluding dividend received) 796 B4.9
Dividend income 1.3 64.8
Operating expenses (79.0) (90.6)
Impaimment of goodwill (37.2) -
Profit f {loss) before income tax (35.2) 59.1
Asset under management (AuM} (in GBP m) 6,443 7,087
Tier 1 ratio 20.49% 23.69%

The loss on ordinary aclivities before tax for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 is £35.2m (2018 profit: £59.1 m). The Company’s
ioss for the year has been influenced by a variety of factors.

Operating income has fallen in the year reflecting a reduction in clients AuM, and a reduction in global interest rates particularly in the latter
part of the year. Operating expenses has been increased by an impairment to goodwill, reflecting a reduction in future profitability; other
expenses have dropped year on year reflecting the Company’s costs saving initiatives. The Company's profit for the prior year was
substantially increased by the dividends received from its subsidiaries after a review of capital requirements and utilisation. Excluding both
impaimment of goodwill and dividend income the Company made an underlying profit of £0.7m (2018 loss of £5.7m). During the year a
dividend of £56 7m was paid to SG. Subsequent to that decision, an impairment of goodwill has been recognised reflecting updated forecasts,
inter alia, the impact of COVID-19 identified in 2020. This was not foreseeable at the time the dividend was paid. In February 2020 a dividend
of £41.5m has been received from a subsidiary resloring positive retained earnings.

Income

During the year client deposits decreased by 16.2% to £1.8billion (2018: £2.2 billion) and loans and advances 1o customers has increased
4.2% to £1.119 billion (2018: £4.074 billion). This fall in deposits was as a consequence of a number of factors including deiiberate de-risking
by the Company and some clients opting to move money to other jurisdictions with end of year election concerns. This loss of deposits has
been from on-demand deposits and has Jed to a significant loss of margin from their re-investment in the Company's treasury portfolio.
Margins have also been squeezed in the market. Net interest income is £33.1m (?N1R" £39.6m), down 16.5% on 2018,

Assets under management (“AuM*) of the Company decreased 9.1% to £6.4 billion (2018: £ 7.1 billion). Net fee and commission income in
2019 is £50.0m {2018: £50.3 m) and has decreased by 0.5% from 2018. This is due in part to a fall in asset management fees of £2.7m
(8.4%) in line with AuM which has been partially offset with a rise in retail banking customer fees of £1.9 m, 14.0% when compared to prior
year.

Costs

Costs overall have increased by £25.6m in 2019 of which an impairment of goodwill has been booked of £37.2m during the year
predominately recognised with the acquisition of KBBL. A lower profil-base, coupled with the challenging economic environment that will be
further impacted by the COVID-19 virus on the Company’s future profitability, have decreased the fulure cash flows over which the goodwill
asset is assessed and consequently the Company can no longer support the valuation of this asset. Operational savings made in the year and
a reduction in project costs have offset this write-down of the goodwiil.

Average full-time staff headcount decreased to 330 {2018: 342), as the Caompany rationalised its processes throughout the year.
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Measurement and performance / KPI (continued)

Capital Management

The Tier 1 capital ratio as at 31 December 2019 is 20.49% (31 December 2018 : 23.69%). The reduction in the capital ratic is mostly due to
an increase in risk weighted assets (RWA) of approximately £140m . The increase in RWA is driven primarily by operational risk £114.5m,
which is due to an increase in the allocation key driven by risk events in the Advanced operational risk model of Sociele Generale. The
company will keep the allocation keys under review throughout 2020.

A dividend of £56.7m (2018 £ni!) has been paid during the year. The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend for the year.

Despite the dividend, regulatory capital has changed very little compared to the prior year as prior year profits are only recognised from the
point at which the financial statements, to which they retate, have been audited. The 2018 financial statements were signed in April 2019 and
the dividend was paid in November 2019, Regulatory capital therefore increased in April 2019 as a consequence of recognising the prior year
profit after tax of £62.2m; and decreased in November 2019 as a consequence of paying the dividend.

Duty to promote the success of the company

Kleinwort Hambros is committed to being a responsible private bank., This is achieved through making a positive difference 1o the
development of our communities and people across the UK, Channel Islands and Gibraltar, as well as helping our clients to build sustainable
legacies.

Our core values - innovation, team spirit, responsibility and commitment - are the foundation of our cullure and commitments. They define cur
expectations and create a strong corporate governance when it comes to the behaviour of our employees and the role we want to ptay in
society.

INNOVATION - We welcome diversity of thought in all our decisions

TEAM SPIRIT - We ensure everyone is respected, valued and heard

COMMITMENT - We promote an inclusive culture based on integrity and respect

RESPONSIBILITY - We believe in accountability and sustainability to build a fair environment

QOur Community

We have a talented and knowledgeable team of employees who are keen to share that wealth of expertise within our local communities.

To help them, we offer 24 hours of volunteering time per year. They can use this to undertake their own personal volunteering, or to contribute
to the range of Citizenship programmes organised by the bank

Qur people .

We are convinced that having a diverse and inclusive warkforce can drive the success of an organisation.

We are leading on diversity initiatives, including educating all employees to ‘Work with Respect’ and training managers on how to ‘Manage an

Inclusive Environment’. We promote flexible and agile working practices as well as various family and gender networks o support sustainable
and healthy lifestyles. We promote equality through our recruitment, talent development and reward practices.

Employee welibeing is essential to build a sustainable business.

We provide various benefils to help promote wellbeing with initiatives that nn through the year, such as mental and phyaical health education
workshops, mental health training and first aiders, GP medical services, sports and social events, on-site physiotherapy and massages, agile
working and exercise classes. We also run an annual wellbeing campaign week by hosting workshops and exercise challenges.

Our senior managers and Executive Committee regularly engage with staff via a number of informal and formal initiatives, including an annual
employee survey, regular team meetings, townhalls, breakfasts and sports and social events,

Our Clients

At Kleinwort Hambros, responsible investing fits naturally within our investment philosephy. Drawing on the VaMo$S (Valuation, Momentum
and Senliment) framework, we have carefully developed our responsible investment policy to integrate our clients’ current and future goals
and aspirations.

Our investment principles

o Get the big decisions right

»  Take risk only when risk is likely to be well rewarded
»  Avoid arge losses

. Invest responsibly
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Duty to promote the success of the company {continued)

We believe that a robust investment process implemented in a responsible way puts our clients' interest at the heart of what we do. As a
responsible private bank, our values are deeply rooted in the belief that investors can and must participate in a change for good.

We incorporate ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance) principles into our investment process and philosophy. Across all of our
portfolios, we strive to limit exposure to sectors such as: Adult entertainment, Themal coal, Tobacco, Gambling and Controversial weapons.

To further demonstrate cur commitment, we have also designed a dedicated proposition, which specifically supports our proactive approach
to responsible investing.

Investing responsibly does not have to mean financial compromise; in fact, we believe incorporating sustainability criteria can improve risk and
return of an investment portfclio. In cther words, there is no trade-off between doing well and doing good.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial and other risks which are described in more detail in Note 26. These are managed
within an overall risk management framework, comprised of 10 risk appetite statements (approved by the Board}, supported by around 100
key risk indicators {*KRIs"). These are reviewed at various commitiees, including the Group Executive Risk and Compliance Committee, the
Asset and Liability (“ALCO") Committee, the Risk Committee of the Board, and the Company Board. The principal risks of the Company
include credit, liquidity, regulatory, operational, conduct and cyber.

The fotlowing financial risks are described at Note 26 in the Notes to the Financial Statements:
» Market risk, comprising interest rate and foreign exchange risk

» Credit risk, including counterparty risk and large exposures

*»  Liquidity risk

Other non-financial risks to which the Company is exposed include:

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from externai events. This
definition includes legal risk but excludes strategic or reputational risk.

Within the Company, a number of processes are used to measure, monitor and mitigate instances of operational errors. A summary of the
approaches used is as follows:

= Risk & Control Self-Assessment {“RCSA") — A periodic RCSA assessment is undertaken to assess and guantify the inherent risk exposure,
the quality of controls in place and the resultant residual risk exposures across the Company’s core areas of business and for each Baset Il
event category.

* Loss Recording and Analysis — All operational errors and commercial ex-gratia payments in excess of EUR 10,000 for losses and EUR
50,000 for gains, are required to be captured and reported on a monthly basis to the Company's Group Executive Risk Commitiee and
Front Office Risk and Control Commitiee. Additionally, alt losses, gains and commercial ex-gratia payments falling beneath these reperting
thresholds are captured using the Company's incident reporting tool (*Phoenix”} and distributed to the Company's business heads and
senior management. The operational risk teams will produce root-cause analysis on any significant incidents, which are also sent to senior

management._They-aiso-review-all-incidents—for-trends—and-recomriierid —enhanced procedures or other measures should they be
necessary.

Regulatory risk

The Company is subject to financial services laws, regulation and regulatory oversight. Failure to comply with any of these constitutes a
significant risk. The Prudential Regulation Authority ("PRA") is responsible for the authorisation and prudential supervision of the Company
while the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA") is responsible for conduct of business supervision. The Company has invested in systems and
pecple 1o comply with and benefit from increased regulatory aversight and to improve information exchange with the regulator.

There remains a high level of scrutiny regarding financia! institutions’ treatment of customers and overall business conduct from the FCA.

The Company is required by the PRA to maintain adeguate capital and is therefore subject to the risk of having insufficient capital resources
to meet its minimum regulatory capital requirements. These minimum regulatory requirements may increase in the future and/or the PRA may
change the manner in which it applies existing regulatory requirements to the Company. Note 25 describes the Company's capital
management process.
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Principal risks and uncertainties {continued)

Conduct risk

Conducl risk is any risk that could result in unfair outcomes to our clients, counterparties or the Company through inappropriate judgement in
the execution of the Company's business activities, The Board recognises that its long-term sustainability depends upon the strength and
protection of its reputation and its relationship with its clients. Therefore, strategically the Company has a very small appetite for risks that
could materialty impair clients and thereby damage its reputation. The Board accepts that there is inherent risk in being in the business of
oftering and providing banking and invesiment services to {primarily) high net worth retail clients and therefore acknowledges that a zero-risk
appetite is unfeasible.

The Company mitigates, manages and monitors conduct risk on an on-going basis through a strong risk and compfiance culture, an
appropriaste governance framework. defined senior management oversight arrangements and conduct risk management information which
includes quantitative and qualitative ratios and indicators that measure crystalised and un-crystallised issues. A conduct risk dashboard is
maintained and is an imporiant element of the annual risk and compliance ratings process, which in turn has a materia! impact on the annual
compensaticn review process.

Senior management are responsibie for conducting an annual conduct sk assessmenl and reporting to the Board on an at least annual
basis. The Board accepts a low conduct risk appetite on the basis that material risks identified by the conduct risk assessment are
appropriately mitigated via a conduct risk action pian.

Cyber risk

Cyber risk is a rapidly evolving area. All banks, including the Company, are exposed to this risk, and the number and variety of risks are
increasing. The results of a cyber event can range from financial loss through to reputational damage. Whilst everyone has a key role to play
in mitigating these risks, the Company also has developed specific tools, and a dedicated Infosec team to monitor the risks, implement the
many tools designed to combat cyber events, and also to oversee and coordinate staff training.

The key contrels include dedicated Infosec personnel, anti-virus software, firewalls, Infosec policies, a clear desk policy. auditing of Intermet
connected services, contractual obligations that require third parties to report security breaches, monitoring of in-house internet facing
services, data leakage detection technologies which monitor email and browser channels, systems monitoring and alerting tools and weekly
change management review meetings.

The Company has also run annual cyber event response tests — designed to mimic an aciual event and assess the strengths and
weaknesses in the Company's responses, This is fed back into an action plan to continuously improve our defences and responses to any
future event.

Integration risk

integration risk has been identified as a principal risk due to the on-going risk related to the move to a single Banking platform. The risk
manifests as increased opportunities for capilal losses and reputational damage as a result of pressures on systems and resources due to the
continued delay in integration of the twe legacy systems. The integration risk has significantly reduced in 2019 due to the completion of
Project Arena in late October, migrating the legacy KB business onto Olympic.

Future plans, trends and developments

COoVID-19
The COVID situation is evolving rapidly across Eurcpe and the Company has taken a number of steps 1o minimise risks.

We have put in place the nacessary measures to ensure business continuity, whilst protecting the health of our staff, suppliers and clients.
Our teams are fully prepared and equipped to work remotely, accessing the Company's systems by means that maintain the confidentiality,
integrity and availability of our data. Client meetings continue on telephone and video conference where appropriate.

We are also grappling with the market effects of the spread of COVID. The Kiginwort Hambros Investment Committee is meeting regularly
throughout this period of volatility to deliver the best possible outcomes for our clients. We remain highly vigilant as always and are watching
momenturm and other signals to guide our actions in the near-term.

Revenue for 2020 is expected to reduce due to the impact of falling market interest rates on the financial instruments heid by the Company.
Credit losses are not expected to significantly increase on client loans as a consequence of the pandemic due to the typically low LTV ratios
for Lombard and real estate lending, and the ability of the Company's clients to service loans from other sources of wealth.
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Future plans, trends and developments (continued}

Brexit
The Company has planned for and modelled a number of Brexit scenarios at the end of the transition period. Its central planning assumes
several factors impacting the KH group:

» *Hard Brexit" with loss of passporting rights for KH UK and KH Gibraltar

= Noimmediate impact on EU Nationals working in KH

* Gibraltar / Spain border to remain open on a BAU basis

=« Continuing of current arrangements in the medium term regarding Crown dependencies

The Company has also identified £460 m of AUM and £42 m of loans across the KH group that are from clients located within the EU and that
are therefore at risk with respect to loss of business. Under certain Brexit scenarios business can continue with these clients but the Company
recognises that this may be difficult. In those circumstances efforts will be made to transfer these clients to other entities within the Societe

Generale Private Banking group.

IBOR Replacement

In preparation for the cessation of certain interbank Offered Rate ( “IBOR” ) benchmarks at the end of 2021, Kieinwort Hambros has
implemented a project to execute the transition to alemative interest rate benchmarks. The project team, operating in conjunclion with the
equivalent project in Societe Generale, provide full coverage of all IBOR-linkages in the business and have delivered significant developments
in 2019. These developments have focussed on the live product offering, with actions now underway fo transitton legacy IBOR-linked products
and contracts to alternative benchmarks. The project is on course to ensure a full migration prior 1o the deadline in 2021. The Company is
closely monitoring the evolution, with periodic updates on the progression 1o the relevant regulatory bodies.

The Company is also commitied to implement other legislative and regulatory changes in a timely manner and has implemented new systems
and controls to ensure it complies with significant regulatory developments during 2020. Preparations are underway to enable the Company to
comply with future regulatory developments.

Approved by the Board of Directors

Signed con behalf of the Board

O\%fdmb

O D Meredith

Director

S8G Kieinwort Hambros Bank Limited

Company No 864058

5th Floor, 8 St James's Square, London SW1Y 4JU
20 May 2020
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Directors’ Report on the Financial Statements

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report, together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The Strategic Report on the Financial Statements, including future trends and developments and risks relating 1o financial instruments, forms
an integral part of the Directors Repart on the Financial Statements.

Principal activity

8G Kleinwort Hambros Bank Limited (‘the Company”), and its subsidiaries (together the “KH Group®) are part of the private banking am of
the Soci¢te Générale Group ("SG Group™} operating in the UK, the Channel! Islands and Gibraltar. It has established a sound reputation for
weaith management and related banking services. The Company, a licenced bank, is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and
regutated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority.

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of wealth management and related banking services, and offers its clientele an
integrated wealth management service, including the provision of full banking, lending and fiduciary services as well as investment
management advice.

The KH Group of entities have £13.8 billion (2018: £14.2 billion) of assets under management and operate under the Kleinwort Hambros
brand name. The Company is not required 1o prepare consolidated financial statemerts and hence, the report that follows relates only to the
UK bank operations.

Société Geénérale is one of the largest European financial services groups. Based on a diversified universal banking model, the SG Group
combines financial solidity with a strategy of sustainable growth, and aims to be the reference for relationship banking, recognised in its
markets, close to clients and chosen for the quality and commitment of ils teams.

Directors and directors’ interests

The following directors have held office during the year:

5 W Barnett, Chair

J W Maitland .
E E Bamett (resigned 24 June 2019)

P. Follea {appointed 2 July 2019}

M P Newman

A S Ewing

K N Graf von Schweinitz

J-F Mazaud (resigned 2 July 2019}

S B Ricke (resigned 7 February 2020)
X P Lofficial

E V Perez

G A Branson

O D Meredith

M Choukeir

The Company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were made during the year and remain
in-foree-at-the-date-of this-report:;

No director had a beneficial interest in the shares of the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.



(Page 10

of 71)

Directors’ Report on the Financial Statements

Corporate governance

The Board of the Directors helds the Company to a high standard of Corporate Govermnance including following the SG Group model for
corporate governance.

As at 31 December 2019, the Board of Directors comprised five executive directors and seven non-executive directors. Four of the non-
execulive directors are fully independent and alt are considered to be independent in character and judgement. The non-executive directors
participate fully with their executive colleagues in Board Meetings and have access to all information they need to perform their duties.

The rofes of Chair and Chief Executive are separated and are clearly defined. The Chair is primarily responsible for the working of the Board
angd the Chief Executive for the running of the business and implementation of Board strategy and palicy.

The appointment of directors is considered by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee and approved by the Board and the sharehoider.
Directors need not retire by rotation or stand for re-election by the shareholder.

The Board has at least three substantive meetings each year with a further number of Board meetings and teleconference calls during the
ysar. A programme is prepared, and agreed each year, which ensures that the directors are able to discharge their duties regularly. Matters
reserved for the attention of the Board include determination of the Company's stralegy, reviews of budgets and financial statements,
company acquisitions and disposals and major capital expenditure.

The Company befieves in promoling and fostering an environment and culture where all employees feel abled to speak up and report any
concerns. The Board has adopted a Speak Up and Whistie Blowing Policy {the *Policy™) and has adopted the Chartered Institute for Securities
and Investments’ recommended “Step Up" and “Speak Up” approach which is detailed in the Policy. The Board receives an annual report on
Whistle Blowing.

Every director is offered training upon appointment and as necessary during their appointment. All directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary and may seek independent professional advice, if necessary, at the Company's expense.

The Board has appointed the following Board Commifiees, with formal terms of reference covering its authority and duties, which are regulary
reviewed by the Board.

SG Kleinwort Hambros Audit Committee {(“KH Group Audit Committee”)

The members of the KH Group Audit Committee are M Newman (Chair), K Graf Von Schweinitz. § Ricke was a member prior to her
resignation 7 February 2020.

The functions of the KH Group Audit Committee have been reviewed and aligned to local regulation and the internal Société Générale
Corparate Governance principles. The KH Group Audit Committee advises the Board on issues related to the preparation and control of
accounting, financial information and corporate reporting, on the arrangements for internal controls (governance, risk and control systems}
and ensures an appropriate relationship with the Company's auditors is maintained. Duties relating to legal reviews, compliance and financial
crime were moved to the KH Group Audit Committee to align to the SG Corporate Governance principles.

The Audit Commitiee reviews the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls and risk management systems, primarily by the
assessment of the annual financial statements, the scope and findings of the annual external audit, and of Internal Audit Reviews, reports
preduced by the MLRO, the Head of UK Compliance and the control functions, and periodic reviews of identified risks and mitigaling controls

undertaken-by-senior-management;-together with-the"assessment of tHe work of the Internal Audit depariment.

The internal audit function reviews operations on a continuing basis. A risk-based internal audit programme details the frequency and intensity
of reviews and is presented to and approved by the KH Group Audit Committee. Over the course of 2019 the KH Group Audit Committee
received regular reports on the activities of the internal audit function and on progress with the agreed recommendations.

The internal audit function is fulfilled by the Société Générale Internal Audit team, who have access to the full resources of the Société
Générale group, which wilt ensure continued best practice and access to industry and regulatory intemal audit guidance.

The KH Group Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the external audilors' independence, the nature of non-audit services supplied
and non-audit fee levels relative io the audit fee, together with the quality of service provided and are content with the independence of the
auditors.

The KH Group Audit Commitiee meets on a quarterly basis each year. The KH Group Audit Committee has regular discussions with the
external auditor and the Head of Intenal Audit and has a formal meeting without management present at least annually. The Chair of the
Board has an ongoing invitation to attend the KH Group Audit Committee.
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SG Kleinwort Hambros Risk Committee (*KH Group Risk Committee”)
The members of the KH Group Risk Coi-nminee are K Schweinitz (Chairj), M Newman and X Lofficial.

The functions of the KH Group Risk Committee have been reviewed and are aligned to local ‘regulation and the Société Générale Corporate
Govemnance principles The KH Group Risk Committee advises the Board on: the efficacy of the nisk management framework; the
appropriateness of the risk appetite; overall assessment of risk {including the principal and prospective risks it is willing to take in achieving its
strategic objectives, inform key business decisions and ensure fair customer outcomes); the examination of the supervision systems to ensure
the effective oversight of risk management and internal controls; and the monitoring of banking and financial risks measurements.

The KH Group Risk Committee assesses the business's strategies and plans from a risk perspective and, in particular, the tolerance for
current and potential risk exposure. The KH Group Risk Committee also reviews and recommends actions in respect of cversight,
management and control of risk.

The KH Group Risk Committee considers the Risk Appetite Statement and recommends it to the Board, taking into account the current and
prospective macroeconomic and financial environment; this includes the ICAAP and ILAAF pfe-Board reviews. This document outlines the
nature and quantum of risk the Company wishes to bear in order to achieve its strategic, profitability and growth objectives whilst remaining
within regulatory constraints. It also notes the key policies established by the Company tc manage these risks and the approval process
goveming those policies.

The KH Group Risk Committee meets quarterly each year; there were four Risk Commitiee meetings in 2019 with an additional meeting to
consider the ICAAP and ILAAP in detail. The Chief Risk Officer always attends the meetings. The Chair of the KH Group Risk Committee has
regular informal discussions with the CRO and the Chairman of the Board has an ongoing invitation to attend the KH Group Risk Committee.

SG Kieinwort Hambros Remuneration and Nomination Committee (“KH Group Remuneration and
Nomination Committee”)

The members of the KH Group Remurneration and Nomination Committee are S Barnett (Chair). P Fotlea (appointed 2 July 2019) and K Graf
Von Schweinitz.

The functions of the KH Group Remuneration and Nomination Committee have been reviewed and are aligned 1o local regulation and the
Société Générale Corporate Governance principies. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee recommends to the Board lotal
compensation for key individuals and material risk takers and does so to promote the long-term success of the Group, stakeholders and the
public interest.

The KH Group Remuneration and Nomination Committee recommends future directors, senior Executive roles and Committee members 1o
the Board; carries out robust succession planning; examines the appointment policies and processes of the Beard; and propoeses 1o the Board
a gender batance target.

The KH Group Remuneration and Nomination Committee has at least three subslantive mestings each year. The Chief Exacutive Officer, HR
Director and Group General Counsel of the Company normally attend meetings, Terms of Reference detail the rales and responsibilities of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee; these are normally reviewed annually,
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Employees

It is the Company’s policy to give full and fair consideration to employees, workers and polential employees without regard to race, colour,
naticnality or nationat origin, sex, gender reassignment, marriage, disability, age, sexual orientation, religion or belief. All company policies,
practices and procedures relaling to resourcing, training, development and promotion are administered equally and in accordance with all
applicable faws.

it is the Company's policy to provide equal opportunities in all aspects of employment from the sourcing and selection of candidates,
recruitment and training of employees to terms and conditions of employment and reasons for termination of employment and to ensure that
any employment decisions are taken without reference to irrelevant or discriminatory criteria.

The Company pays particular regard to the involvement of employees generally in the Company's aclivities and achievements.
Communication with employees has continued through presentations, intranet announcements and e-mails, so all employees are aware of the
key priorities for the business, the financial and economic performarnce of their business units and of the Company as a whole.

Annual employee engagement surveys are performed to highlight areas of impravement within the Group. The Board considers the results of
the surveys and receives updates from Senior Management on initiatives that have been implemented to address the findings of the surveys.

During 2019, the Bank introduced the KH Career Returner Programme which helped women to return to the workforce,
In 2017 the Bank introduced both Gender Pay Gap Reporting and Payment Practices and Performance Reporting.

Throughout 2020, the Board will continue to review and challenge how the Bank can improve engagement with its employees and
stakeholders.

Disclosure of information to auditors

In accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006, the directors who held office at the date of appraval of this
directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information. Words and phrases used in this confirmation should
be interpreted in accordance with section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Auditors

Emst & Young LLP have indicated their willingness to be reappointed for another term. Appropriate arrangements have been put in place for
them 1o be deemed reappointed as auditor in the absence of an Annual General Meeting.

Results and dividends
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company reported a total comprehensive loss of £31.9m (2018 profit: £60.3m).

The performance of the Company during the year is examined in the Strategic Report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year 2019 (2018: ENil).

Going concern

Note 25 and Note 25 1o the financia! statements include the Company’s objeclives, policies and processes for managing its ¢apital, including
its Individual Capital Adequacy Assessment Process ("ICAAP"), its financial risk management objectives; details of its financial instruments

. and hedging activities; and ils exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company has maintained at all times over the year sufficient liquid asset buffer investments to operate within the business risk appetite
as defined in its Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process document and for survival under prescribed stress scenarios including
combined stress scenarios. Liquidity monitoring under stress is monitored frequently by the Executive KH Group Asset Liability Committee
which meets on a monthly basis and reported regularly to the Directors of the Board.

COVID-19 with its social and economic impacts is of specific consideration for the capital and liquidity risk of the Company. The Company is
expecling reduced revenue for 2020 as a consequence of the crisis and has a number of different risk mitigation plans that it is able to enact if
circumstances changed further. Also, in response to the crisis, as part of a consistent approach to the industry, the PRA has eased capital
requirements for the Company by allowing the Company 1o use, if required, the counter cyclical buffer that the Company is required to hold.
After considering the Company's current position and environment the directars believe the Company has sufficient resources and ability to
operate throughout the crisis. ’

(1. 3o

z1 sbea)
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Going concern (continued)

The directors believe that the Company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully. After consideration, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the going concern basis will continue 1o be adopted in preparing the annual report and financial statements.

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Repori, Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare the financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have elected to
prepare financial stalements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting
Standards including Financial Reporting Standarg 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework and applicable law’). Under company law the
directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the profit and ioss of the Company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material depariures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in
business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that its financial
slatements comply with the Companies Act 2006, They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open 1o them to
safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect traud and other irregularities

Approved by the Board of Directors

Signed on behalf of the Board

O\S‘@f\fy{uv—

O O Meredith
SG Kleinwort Hambros Bank Limited
Company No 964058

Direcior

5th Floor, 8 St James’s Square, London SW1Y 4JU
20 May 2020
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Auditors Report on the Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SG KLEINWORT HAMBROS BANK LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SG Kleinwort Hambros Bank Limited for the year ended 31 December 2018 which comprise the
Statement of Profit and Lass, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the related notes 1 1o 30, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards including FRS 101 *Reduced Disclosure Framework”
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statemens:

- give a true and fair view of the Bank's affairs as at 31 December 2019 and cf its loss for the year then ended;

. have been properiy prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducled our audit in accordance with Intermational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our repont
below. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

. the Directors’ use of the going concem basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

+ the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the
Bank’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Overview of our audit approach

Key audit matters s  Revenue recognition
. Lean impairment provisioning
. IT system migration

e  Going concemn basis used in preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements

Materiality +  Overall matenality of £4.5m which represents 1% of total equity

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These
matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the atlocation of rescurces in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Risk Qur response to the risk Key observations
communicated to the Audit
Commitiee
Revenue Recognition: Interest | We have: All transactions tested have

Income £47.3m, PY £51.3m; Fee and
Commission Income £51.0m, PY
£51.3m

Refer to the accounting policies (pages
34 and 35); notes 5 and € of the
financial statements (pages 38 and 39).

Risk of inappropriate recognition of
revenue whether from an existence ar
measurement perspective particulary
focused on complexity of system
calculations and likelihood of
misstatements due to error.

In addition, we focus on non-systematic
generated revenue streams (ad-hoc
fees, commission income) are subject
to manual intervention or adjustment
due to management override.

The risk has neither increased nor
decreased in the current year.

. performed an assessment of the risk of material
misstatement for each material revenue stream
considering the level of automation and use of
judgement;

. performed walkthroughs for all significant revenue
streams, of the key processes and controls
underpinning the recognition of revenue;

. tested the key conirols around customer on-
boarding, loan origination and input of static data
within the systems;

« iested the controls over new fee agreements and
any amendments made to existing fee
agreements;

. tested the controls over the access to and
changes to the IT systems underpinning the
revenue process,

« tested the IT Application Controls for automated
revenue processes such as automated interest
income and fee calculations;

. selected a sample of manyal fee & commission
revenue items to validate the fee rates through to
customer agreements and recalculated the fee
income;,

» tested the retrocession fee calculation and agreed
the receivable balance to subsidiary entities;

* tested the revenue accrual raised at year end by
substantiating the amount through recalculation of
the last quarier fees and commissions;

« iested the appropriateness of journal entries
recorded in the sub-ledgers and general ledger
and any other adjustments made in the
preparation of the financial statements by auditing
a sample of jounal entries back to supporting
documentation;

. performed substantive analytical protedures on
the asset management fee by setting an
expectation based in the value of AuM (assets
under management) and average returns;

s tested the completeness of the AuM by agreeing
the listing to the independent confirmation of AuM
from custodians; and

. perfarmed an independent revaluation of a sample
of AuM, .

been recognised in accordance
with the underlying agreements
or other supporting
documentation. Based on the
procedures performed, we have
no matters to report in respect of
revenue recognition.
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Risk Our response to the risk Key observations
communicated to the Audit
Commitiee

Loan Impairment Provisioning: | We have: We have assessed the loan loss

Loans and Advances to Customers
£1,124m, PY £1,078m; Impairment
Provision £4.7m, PY £3.9m

Refer to the accounting policies (pages
30 and 31); and note 14 of the financial
statemenls (pages 50 and 51).

Risk that the IFRS 9 loan impairment
provision against the retail loan portfolio
is miscalculated due to inappropriate
staging of the loans  andfor
inappropriate assumptions used by
management in the expected credit
loss ('ECL’) calculation.

We have focused our testing on higher
risk stage 2 and 3 loan exposures,
where the risk of material misstatement
is higher.

The nsk has neither increased nor
decreased in the current year.

+ performed a walkthrough and testing the design
and implementation of relevant controls, including
loan monitoring, provision calculations and {IFRS 9
provision models;

. tested the IT general controis and IT application
controls around the loan amears maonitoring
process and provision calculation;

. performed data analytics over the portfolio of
loans in order to select a risk-based sample for
detailed credit file review testing;

. performed the following procedures on the IFRS ¢
. model;

« benchmarked the key inputs: Probability of
Default {'PD’} and Loss Given Default
('LGD’} with comparable private banks;

+ challenged the assumptions to third party
suppart and historical data;

+ recalculated the expected credit loss {'ECL')
across the population of Stage one loans;

s tested the completeness of the {oan exposures
included in the IFRS 9 model by agreeing the
balances to the source systems;

the Stage 3 migration, including the
impacted exposure and

. lested
detericration in the
arrears levels;

+ tested the collateral valuations to 3rd pary,

sources for a sample of loans in all ECL stages:

. tested the recovery strategy, DCF calculations,
and coltateral valuation analysis for loans for a
sample of Stage 3 ECL provisions,; and

. assessed the compliance of Management's
accounfing policies and disclosures with IFRS 9 -
Financial Instruments.

provisions recorded and the
disclosures included under IFRS
9 - Financial Instruments. Based
on the procedures performed,
we have no matters to report in
respect of the loan impairment
provision.
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Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to the Audit
Committee

IT system migration

Refer to the Strategic Report (pages 4
and 7); and the basis of preparation
note 2.3 (page 27).

The migration of data from OBS (legacy
Kleinworl Benson system) lo the
Olympic banking application occurred
during the year.

There is a risk that account balances
and associated static information were
not migrated completely or accurately.

This is a new risk in the current year.

We have:

. reviewed the programme govemance and project
management of the migration.

. checked the overall reconciliation of the OBS trial
balance at the pre-migration date to the
appropriate balances in Olympic post-migration;

. for a sample of balances within assets, liabilities,
and the income statement, checked that the
balances were accurately migrated to the correct
account classification from OBS te Olympic;

. verified that the static data for a sample of loans
and deposits was migrated accurately,

+ for a sample of assets under management we
ensured they were accurately migrated from OBS
to Olympic and the appropriate customer tariff
associated to these assels.

Based on procedures
performed, we. did not identify
any significant findings in

relation to the migration from
OBS to Olympic.
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Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to the Audit
Committee

Going concern basis used in
preparing the Annual Report and
Financial Statements

Refer to the Strategic Report {pages 4
to B), the Directors Report (pages 12
and 13); the Basis of preparation note
2.3 {pages 27 to 28); and note 27 of the
financial statements (page 68)

Risk that the financial statements may
be incorrectly prepared on a going
concern  basis due to inaccurate
management information or forecasts

The Bank's Annual Report and
Financial Statements are prepared on
the going concern basis of accounting.
This means the Bank is able to operate
for the foreseeable future, but at least
12 months from the opinion date. This
basis is dependent on a number of
factors including the Bank's financial
performance, and ability to comply with
regulatory requirements.

The COVID-19 pandemic is of an
unprecedented scale and has severely
impacted the giobal economy. There is
a significant degree of uncerainty
about the further spread of the virus
and the final impact on the world
economy. The bank has no external
debt as such the key risks relates to
future profitability, liquidity and capital,

The risk is new and has increased in
significance in the current year.

We have;

«  attended the most recent Audit Committee
meetings where the Directors considered the
impact of COVID-19 on the business and
discussed whether, in their opinion, there is any
material uncertainty regarding the bank's ability to
continue as a going concem for the foreseeable
future,;

. challenged management on their revised forecast
profitability verifying the impact to third party
economic analysis,

+ challenged the revised forecasts used by
management of income and cost rates using
valuation specialists;

« assessed the credit quality of the assets on
balance sheet for potential deterioration since
year end;

. performed a detailed review of the latest ICAAP,
ILAAP and COVID-19 scenario analysis prepared
by management, including:

+ challenged the key stress cases for their
impact considering the current economic
environment;

+ challenged the reverse stress test scenarios
to assess them for reasonableness in the
cument economic envirenment;

« assessed whether the capital headroom was
sufficient based on current risk factors in the
forecasts,;

» assessed whether the liquidity ratios were
still appropriate in the current economic
environment;

« revisted the following key estimates and
judgements for the impact of revised forecasts and
COVID-19 impact on these assessments, using
ouwr specialists where appropriate:

- impaimment assessmert of Investment in
subsidiaries;

« recognition of deferred tax assets related to
retained losses,;

+« reviewed all key management, committee and
board of directors meeting minutes for any
indications that the going concern basis of
preparation may not be appropriale; and

« assessed the adequacy of COVID-18, subsequent
events and going concern disclosures in the
financial statements.

We have no issues

to

communicate with respect to our
procedures over the risk that the

going concern assumption
incorrectly applied.

is

In the prior year, our auditor’s report included a key audil matter in relation to goodwill impairment valuation. The Bank has written down the
goodwill to £nil in the current year so is no longer deemed o be a key audit matter. In the current year, we have added key audit matters in

18
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relation 10 the IT systems migration given the additional risk associated with this and going concern basis of preparation for the financial
statements for the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the additicnal work management and we have performed to assess this.

An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope .
Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materality and our allocation of performance materiality determine our audit scope for the
Bank. This enables us to form an opinion on the financial statements. We take into account size, risk profile, the organisation of the Bank and
effectiveness of controls, including controls and changes in the business environment when assessing the level of work to be performed. All
audit work was performed directly by the audit engagement team with the support of internal specialists where required. The audit team is
supported by an EY team in the Channel slands who test the key IT systems, as well as key operational processes and controls which reside
in that location.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in ptanning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the audit and
in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality
The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influance the economic
decisions of the users of the financial statements. Mateniality provides a hasis for determining the nature and extent of our audil procedures.

Woe determined materiality for the Bank to be £4.5 million {2018 £5.1miilion), which is 1% (2018: 1%) of total equity. The basis used is
consistent with the basis from the prior year and we consider this to be the most appropriate factor 1o the users of the financial statements.

During the course of our audil, we reassessed initial materiality and determined there were no significant changes to be made to our
materiality calculations.

Performance materiality
The application of matenality at the individual account or balance level. It is set al an amount lo reduce fo an approprately low leve! the
probabifity that the aggregate of uncomrected and undelected misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Bank’s overall conirol environment, our judgement was that
performance materiality was 75% (2018: 75%) of our planning materiality, namely £3.4m (2018; £3 8m). We have sel performance materiality
at this percentage due io the engagement being moderate risk and the framework remaining the same as prior year.

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We have reported to the Audit Committee all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £226k (2018: £254k), which is set at 5% of planning
materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other
relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's repon
thereon, The directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the ather information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report,
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. if, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatermnent of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
. the information given in the Strategic Report and the Direclors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are

prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
. the Strategic Report and Directors' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.



(Page 20

of

1)

Auditors Report on the Financial Statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Bank and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified
material misstatements in the Strategic Report or Directors’ Report.

We have nothing to repon in respect of the foliowing matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our

opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kepl, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been received from branches nol visited by
us; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 13, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Bank or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee thal an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or ecrar and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irreguiarities, including fraud

The objectives of our audit, in respect to fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements due to
fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriale audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstalement due to fraud, through designing
and implementing appropriate responses; and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit. However, the
primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and management.

Qur approach was as follows:

»  We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatcry frameworks that are applicable to the Bank and determined that the most
significant are FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework® {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and, as
regards to the Bank's financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. Also significant
are regulation, license conditions and supervisory requirements of the Financial Conduct Authority ('FCA'} and Prudential
Regulation Authority (PRA'). We understood how SG Kleinwort Hambros Bank Limited is complying with those frameworks through
the implementation of a corporate governance framework that ensures compliance with laws and regulations.

«  We assessed the susceptibility of the Bank's financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by
overstating revenue through the manual cverride of controls

. Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures io identify non-compliance with such laws and regulations. Our
procedures involved inquiries of internal lega! counsel, executive management, internal audit, and focused testing, ac referred to in
the Key Audit Matters above.

«  The Bank operates in the banking industry which is a highly regulated environment. As such the Senior Statutory Auditor considered
the expertise of the engagement team 1¢ ensure that the team has the appropriale competence and capabilities, which included the
use of specialists where appropriate

. We assessed the susceptibility of the Bank's financial statements to material misstaterment, including how fraud might occur, by
considering the controls that the Bank has established to address risks identified by the entity, or that otherwise see to prevent,
deter of detect fraud. We aiso considered areas of significant judgement, complex transactions, performance targets, economic or
external pressures and the impact these have on the control erwironment. Where this risk was considered to be higher, we
performed audit procedures to address each identified fraud risk included in our testing of Key Audit matters above. These
procedures included testing manual journals and were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were
free from fraud or error,

A further description of 6ur responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at https:/www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibiliies. This description forms pan of our auditor’s report.

Other matters we are required to address
. We were appointed by the Bank on 28 September 2015 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2015 and
subsequent financial periods,

‘The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments is 5 years, covering the years ending 31
December 2015 to 31 December 2019.

20
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. The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethica! Standard were not provided to the Bank and we remain independent of the Bank
in conducting the audit.

. The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Bank's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Bank's members those matiers we are required to state to them in an auditor's report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent pernitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Bank and
the Bank's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for tha opinions we have formed.

Sarah Wiltiams (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Emnst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Laondon

% May 2020
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Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended 31 Dacember 2018

{in GBP thousands) Note 2018 2018

Interest income calculated using EIR ‘ 34,595 35,545
Interest income at FVOCI 12,732 15,748
Interest expense (14,255) (11,655)
Net interest income 5 33,072 39,638
Fee and commission income 50,695 51,348
Fee and commission expense (1,004) (1,062)
Net fee and commission income 6 49,991 50,286
Losses on financial instruments at fair value 7 (2.000) (3,763)
Other expense (1,422) (1,250)
Dividend income 8 1,308 64,809
Total operating income 80,949 149,720
Administrative expenses 9 (76,615) (90,695)
Amortisation 17 (589) {228)
Depreciation 18 [254) {260)
Impairment losses and other provisions (1,503) 608
Impairment of goodwili . 17 (37,190) -
Total operating expenses (116,151) {90,575)
(Loss)} ! profit before income tax (35,202) 59,145
Income tax relief/(expense) 11 1,207 3,065
{Loss) / profit for the year (33,995) 62,210

The results for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are derived from coniinuing operations and are entirely
attributable to owners of the Company.

The notes to the financial statements on pages 27 to 71 are an integral part of these statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2019

{in GBP thousands) Note 2019 2018
(Loss} / profit for the year {33,995) 62,210
Items that may be reclassified to the Statement of profit or loss:
Other recognised gains and losses:
Gains / (losses) on revaluation of FVOCI investments taken to equity 4,256 (6.537)
Tax on FVOCI investments taken to equity (469) 739
Transfer to statement of profit or loss on dispasal of FVOC! financial investments 7 {275} 3,846
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year net of tax 3,512 (1,952)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ iIncome for the year (30,483) 60,258

The total comprehensive (loss) / income is entirely attributable to owners of the Company.

The notes to the financial statements on pages 27 to 71 are an integral part of these statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2019

(In GBP thousands) Note 2019 2018
Assots

Cash and balances at central banks 52,993 169,360
Derivative assets 12 7,130 12,342
Loans and advances to banks . 13 45,744 31,344
Loans and advances to cusiomers 14 1,119,362 1,074 474
Debt and invesiment securities 15 846,575 1,253,521
Shares in group undertakings 16 232,835 232,883
Intangible assets 17 3,175 38,271
Tangible assets 18 425 33z
Cumrent income tax assets 11 2779 .
Deferred income tax assets 11 2.288 4,140
Trade and other receivables 19 23,292 26,577
Total assets 2,332,598 2,843,244

Liabilities and equity

Deposits by banks 20 11,543 41,768
Customers' accounts 21 1,836,229 2,191,216
Financial liabilitias at fair value through profit or loss 12 9,526 35478
Derivative liabilities 12 6,307 6,049
Current income tax liabilities 11 - 896
Other liabilities 22 48,909 60,018
Provisions for liabilities 23 1,698 2,365
Total Habilities 1,914,210 2,337,790
Share capital 24 328,266 328,266
Share premium 45,500 45,500
Share-based capital contribution 2,383 2,264
Undistributable reserves 42,500 42,500
FVOCI reserves 5727 2,215
Retained earnings (5,988) 84,709
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 418,388 505,454
Total equity and liabilities 2,332,598 2,843,244

Memorandum ltems:

Contingent liabilities 28 34,978 52,719
Commitments 28 47 644 62,773

The notes to the financial statements on pages 27 to 71 are an integral part of these statements

Approved and autherised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 May 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

O\%@f& —

© D Meredith
Director
20 May 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
(in GBP thousands) Share Share Share based Undistributable ocl Retained Tota!
Lcapital #mium capital contribution reserves reserves EBINings equity
Balance at 1 January 328,266 45,500 2,264 42,500 2,218 84,709 505,454
2019
Total comprehensive - - - - 3,512 (33,995) (30,483)
incomel{expense)
Transactions with
owners
Capital increase - - - - - - -
Equity settled - - 118 - - - 119
payments
Dividends paid - - - - - {56 702} (56,702)
Transactions with
owners, recorded
directly in equity - - 119 - - {66,702) {56,583)
Balance at 31 328,266 45,500 2,383 42,500 5727 (5,988) 418,388

. Decomber 2019

The notes fo the financial statements on pages 27 to 71 are an integral part of these statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018

{tn GBP thousands) Share Shara Share based Undistributable oCl1 Relained Total

capital premium capital contribution reserves resarves £BININGS equity
- Balance at 1 ’ 303,266 45,500 2,145 42,500 4,495 23,000 420,906

. January 2018
Impact of agopting
IFRS 9 (Note 4)
impaimments - - - - - {1,139) {1,139)
adjustment
Tax effect - - - - - 310 310
Transfer from OC) - - - - (328) 328 -
reserves 1o Retained
eamings

Restated opening 303,266 45,500 2,145 42,500 4,167 22,499 420,077
balance under IFRS
9

Total - - - - {1,952) 62,210 60,258
comprehensive
incomel{expense)

Transactions with
owners
Capital increase 25,000 - - - - - 25,000
Equity settied ’ - - . 119 - - - 119
payments

_Dividends - - - - - - - -

Transactions with
owners, recorded

- directly in equity 25,000 - 118 - - - 25,119
Balance at 31 328,266 45,500 2,264 42,500 2,215 84,709 505,454
December 2018

The notes to the financial statements on pages 27 to 71 are an integral part of these statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Reporting entity

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in the Uniled Kingdem. The Company, which operates under the trading name Kleinwort
Hambros, is a whally owned subsidiary whose immediate parent is SG Kleinwort Hambros Limited, @ company incorporated in the United
Kingdom, which is wholly owned by the ultimate parent Société Géneérale S.A..

The registered address of the Company is 5th Floor, 8 St James's Square, London SW1Y 4JU. The principal activity of the Company Is the
provision of wealth management and related banking services. The Company is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority.

These are separate non-consolidated financial statements as the Company is exempt from preparing consolidated financial statements due to
being consolidated into a publicly listed EU parent.

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking and controlling parly is Sociélé Générale S.A., incorporated in France under French Law. It is
also the smallest and largest group in which the publicly available results of the Company are consolidated. The financial statements of
Société Générale S.A. are available to the public and may be obtained from www.societegenerale.com.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1. Statement of compliance

The Company's financial statements, which show a true and fair view, have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (*FRS 101" and in accordance with applicable accounting standards, and comply with the Companies
Act 2008, including the provisions of Schedule 2 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008. The financial statements have been authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 May 2020.

2.2, Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the hislorical cost basis except for the following material items in the statement of financiat
position:

= derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value;
= debt and investment securities are measured at fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly cbservable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes intc account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market paricipants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement purposes in
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36. In addition, for financial reporling purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observabie and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date,; -

= Level 2 inputs are Inputs, oiher than quoled prices included within Level 1,' that are observablte for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

2.3. Going concem

The Company's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set cut in the
directors' report on pages B-14. Key 1o the Company's return to profitability was the migration of the two legacy businesses onto one core
banking platform which was completed at the beginning of October 2019. The Company's business plans, prior lo the effects of COVID-19,
projected a return to core profitability now that implementation has been completed and cost gavings can be realised. COVID-19 with its social
and economic impacls is of specific consideration for the capital and liquidity risk of the Company. The Company is expecting reduced
revenue for 2020 as a consequence of the crisis and has a number of different risk mitigation plans that it is able to enact if circumstances
changed further. The Company holds capital resources in excess of regulatory requirements and its capital forecasts anticipate this to
continue to be the case into the future whilst supporting final cost saving measures, revenue growth of the business and the current economic
crisis. Also, in response to the crisis, as parl of a consistent approach to the industry, the PRA has reduced capital requirements for the
Company by reducing the counter cyclical buffer that the Company is required to hold. Liquidity positions within the Company are actively
managed on a daily basis to ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained at all times to support businesses while at the same time remaining well
within regulatory and internal limits. f needed and notably in order to respect prudential ratios, the ultimate parent company is ready to
consider a request 10 increase regulatory capital. Taking these factors into consideration, the directors believe that the Company is well
placed io manage its business risks successfully.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ___
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2. Basis of preparation (continued)

2.3. Going concem (continued)

After undertaking a detailed analysis of its financial resource requirements under both nommal and stressed operating conditions, the directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to meet its minimum capital and liguidity regulatory requirements
and appropriate contingency ptans to ensure that the Company continues to operate with a prudent capital and liquidity buffer over its internal
requirements for the foreseeable future. Therefore, the Company continues lo adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual repont
and financial staternents.

2.4. Accounting policies
The accounting policies and methods of computation are consistent with those applied in the Company’s 2018 Annual Report and Accounts
with the exception of new accounting policies in respect of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ which was adopted on 1 January 2019.

IFRS 16, Leases (IFRS 18), replaces IAS17, introducing a single lessee accounting model for all leases by eliminating the distinclion between
operating and financing leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases. Lessees also
recognise deprecialion expense on the right-of-use asset and interest expense on the lease liability in the statement of income. Short-term
leases, which are defined as those that have a lease term of 12 months or Jess; and leases of low-value assels are exempt. Lessor
accounting remains substantially unchanged. IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 for the Company
and is applied retrospectively. The Company realised an impact of £340k on the balance sheet on adoption of this standard.

Disclosure exemptions

The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 100) issued by the Financial Reperiing
Council and has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

a) the requirements of paragraphs 45(b) and 46-52 of IFRS 2 Share Based Payment, because the arangement concems the
instrument of ancther group entity,

b) the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

c) the requirements of paragraphs 62, B64(d), B64(e), B64(g), B64(h), B64(j) 1o BE4(m), BE4({n)(ii). BE4 (o)(ii), B64{p), BBA(q)ii), BEE
and B67 of IFRS 3 Business Combinations;

d} the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to present comparative infermation in respect of!

. paragraph 78(a)iv) of IAS 1;
»  paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;
. paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets;

e) the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10{f} and 39(c) of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statemenits;

f the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounling Estimates and Errors;

a) the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures;

h) the requirements in 1AS 24 Related Parly Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into between two or more
members of a group, provided that ahy subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is who!ly owned by such a member; and

i) the requirements of paragraphs 130(R(ii), 130(1)ii), 134{d)-134(f) and 135(c)-135(e) of IAS 36 Impairment of Assels.

2.5. Adoption of new and revised Standards

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 includes a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging
relationships that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affecled if the reform gives rise to
uncerainties about the timing and or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument.

As indicated in the accounting policies, the Company elected, as a policy choice permitted under IFRS 9, to continue to apply hedge
acceunting in accordance with IAS 39 |AS 39 requires that for cash flow hedges, a forecast transaction must be highly probable. IAS 39 also
requires that 4 hedging relationship only qualifies for hedge accounting if the hedging relationship is highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. The assesement of hedge effectiveness is made prospectively and
retrospectively.

As a result of interest rate benchmark reform, there may be uncertainties about the liming and or amcunt of benchmark-based cash flows of
the hedged item or the hedging instrument during the period before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an altemative
nearly risk-free interest rate (an RFR). This may lead to uncertainty whether a forecast transaction is highly probable and whether
prospectively the hedging relationship is expected to be highly effective.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Significant accounting policies
3.1.1. Financial assets and liabilities

~
Classification is based on the objectives of the Company's business model for managing its financial assets and the contractual cash flow
¢haracteristics of the instruments.

The business model reflects how the UK Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. One of the following business models
is identified for each financial instrument depending on how the risks are managed, past experience with the financial asset and how
performance is measured and reported: ’

. hold to collect: it is intended te collect the contractual cash fiows from the assets (Amortised cost classification);

. hold to collect and to sell: it is intended to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of the asset
(FVOCI classification); or

. hold to sell; it is intendad to sell the financial asset in the short to medium term, or the asset is desighated FVPL 1o minimise an
accounting mismatch (FVPL classification).

Where the business model is 'held to collect’ or 'held to collect and sell’ the Company assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest (the 'SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the
contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money,
credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms
introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured al fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets with previously separable embedded derivatives are considered in their enlirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principai and interest,

The Company reclassifies debt investments only when its business model for managing those assets changes. Such changes are expected to
be very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

The accounting requirements of the three measurement categories are as follows:

Amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value, including direct ang incremental transaction costs. Subsequent
measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Company’s secured and unsecured loan portfolios are classified as

amortised cost.

The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expecied credit loss allowance. interest income is included in ‘Interest income’ using
the effective interest mathod.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Flnanclal assets at FvUL] are initially measured at fair value, including direct and incremental fransaction costs. Subsequent measurement is
at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in other comprehensive income, with the exception of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses on the instruments amortised cost which are recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in ‘interest income’ using the effective interest method. The Company's invesiments in debl
securities are classified as FYOCI.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in ‘Fair value gains/losses on financial instruments’.

Fair vaiue through profit or loss (FVPL)
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL on initial recognition and at each reporting date.

Any gain or l0ss on an asset that is subsequently measured at FVPL, and is not part of a hedging relationship, is recognised in profit or loss
and presented in the profit or loss statement within 'Fair vaiue gainsflosses on financial instruments’.

Interest income from these financial assets is included separately in ‘Net Interest Income’..
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.1.1. Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation 1o pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer's net
assets (e.g. basic ordinary shares).

The Company measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, except where Management has elected, at initial
recognition, to imevocably designate the non-trading equity investment at FVOCL When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Impairment losses are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value. Dividends continue to be recognised in profit or loss as ‘Other income’ when the Company’s right to receive
payments is established.

Gains or losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in the ‘Fair value gainsflosses on financial instruments’ line in the Statement of
profit or loss.

Fair value measurement

Fair value measurement is determined by IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement’ and the accounting policy for determining fair value can be
found in note 2.2

3.1.2. Impairment of financial assets

The Company's loan loss impaimment method uses a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. The Company records an
allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL, together with loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as ‘financiat instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impaimment under
IFRS 9.

The ECL aliowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL),
unless there has been no sighificant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected
credit loss (12ZmECL) as outlined in Note 26.3.1.

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a finangial instrument that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying
portfolio of financial instruments. The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of
whether a financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the labove process, the Company groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Siage 3.

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based nn 12mECLs. Stage 1 loanc alao include facilities
where the credil risk has improved, and the ioan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credil rigk since origination, the Company records an aliowance for the LTECLs.
Further details of how these are categorised are provided in note 26.3.1.

Stage 3: When loans are considered credit-impaired, the Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. Further details of how these are
categorised are provided in Note 26.3.1.

The caiculation of ECLs
The Company calculates ECLs based on exposure.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

The Probability of Default (PD) is an estimate of the kkelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain
time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

The Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure
after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on
committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.1.2. Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The caiculation of ECLs (continyed)

The Loss Given Default (LGD) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any
collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separatety from modification losses or gains that are accounted for as an
adjustment of the financial asset’s gross carnying value.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:
Stage 1:

The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLS that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date, The Company calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default
occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to an expected EAD and
multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2:

When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. The
mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument.

Stage 3:

For lpans considered credit-impaited, the Company recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The method is similar to
that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Loan commitments and letters of credit

When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected. portion of the loan commitment that will be
drawn down over its expected life, The ECL is then based on the present value of the expecied shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn
down.

For revolving facilities that include both a toan and an undrawn commitment, ECLs are caiculated and presented together with the loan. For
loan commitments and letters of credit, the ECL is recognised within Provisions.

Financial guarantee contracts

The Company's liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised in the income statement, and the ECL provision. For this purpose, the Company estimates ECLs based on the present value of
the expected payments tc reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs. The ECLs related to financial guarantee contracts are
ra(‘ngni ed within.Provisions:

Debt instruments measured at fair vaiue through OCI

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOC| do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in the statement of financial
position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal 1o the allowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortised
cost is recognised in OC! as an accumulated impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss, The accumulated loss
recognised in OC| is recycled to the profit and loss upon derecognition of the assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.1.2 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write-offs

Financial assels are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery. If the amount to
be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied
against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to credit ioss expense.

Forborne and modified loans

The Company sometimes makes concessions or medifications to the original terms of loans as a response 1o the borrower's financial
difficulties, rather than taking possession or to otherwise enforce collection of collateral. The Company considers a loan forbome when such
concessions or modifications are provided as a result of the borrower’s present or expected financial difficulties and the Company would not
have agreed to them if the borrower had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties include defaults on covenants, or significant
concemns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance may involve extending the payment amangements and the agreement of new
loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impainment is measured using the originat EIR as calculated before the
modification of terms. It is the Company's policy to monitor forborne loans to help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to occur.

Derecognition decisions and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined on a case-by-case basis. If these procedures identify
a loss in relation to a loan, it is disclosed and managed as an impaired $tage 3 forborne asset until it is collected or written off.

After a restructuring, the deciassification of loan stage 3 can only occur at least 12 months after the restructuring, subject to compliance with
the process as well as the lack of any instalments to be paid.

The declassification of a debtor from stage 3 can then occur if the debtor is again deemed capable to meet all his commitments. This includes
both the new contractual commitments resulting from the restructuring and all the eventual previous commitments not part of the restructuring.

e  For retail customers: The declassification from stage 3 can then occur after the minimum one-year period (without any instalments
to be paid during this period), if the client has a sustainable capacity to meet his obligations.

. For non-retail customers: The declassification from stage 3 can then occur after the minimum one-year period, oh a case by case
basis, with an expert judgment based on a financial assessment. As the situation of a non-retail counterparty reverted to being
healthy after a restructuring can remain weak, the latter shall be classified as stage 2 for at least 6 months.

During a 2-year probation period after the declassification from stage 3, any client will be re-classified to stage 3 at the first credit event.

After the probation period, the standard Default rules apply again. However, as for any client, a new Default can occur before the first
instalment to be paid if we eslimate that the client is again in a Default situation (based on a credit risk assessment).

3.1.3. Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; or it fransfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assel 1o another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership of a transferred.financial-assel,~the-Cempany-continues—to—recugnise™the financial asset and alsc recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

3.1.4. Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.1.5. Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure o interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk,
including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and options. Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed
in the ‘Financial instruments' note 1o the financial statements.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at each balance sheel date. A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative
fair value is recognised as a financial liability. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account immediately unless the
derivative is designated as an effective hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the profit and loss account depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship. The Company designates cerlain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or firn commitments (fair value hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transactions, hedges of foreign currency risk of firm
commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investrnents in foreign operations.
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3. Significant accounting pelicies (continued)

3.1.8. Hedge accounting

The hedge accounting requirements of iIFRS 9 are more closely aligned with risk management practices than the current IAS 39 requirements
and foflow a principles-based approach. However, there is an option in IFRS 8 to maintain existing IAS 39 hedge accounting rules until the
IASB compleles its project on macro hedging. This option has been provided because the macro hedging project is still in the consultation
phase, with a second discussion paper due to be issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) in the foreseeable future.
Management have analysed the benefits of adopting IFRS 9 hedge accounting but currently the preferred approach is to continue applying
1AS39 hedge accounting in its entirety. As a result, there is no change from the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts accounting policy. The
revised disclosure requirements of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments; Disclosures’ in relation to hedge accounting will be applied.

The Company makes use o derivative instruments to manage exposures lo inlerest rale, foreign currency and credit risks, including
exposures arising from forecast transactions and firm commitiments. In order to manage particular risks, the Company applies hedge
accounting for transactions which meet the specified criteria.

At inception of the hedge refationship, the Company formally documents the relationship between the company hedged item and the hedging
instruments, including the nature of the risk, the objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge and the method that will be used to assess
the effectiveness of the hedging relationship.

Also, at inception of the hedge relationship. a formal assessment is undertaken to ensure that the hedging instruinent is expected to be highty
effective in offsetting the designated risk in the hedged item. Hedges are formally assessed each quarter. A hedge is expecled to be highly
effective if the changes in fair value or cash flows aftributable to the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge is designated, are
expected to offset in a range of B0% to 125%. For si{uations where the hedged item is a forecast transaction, the Company assesses whether
the transaction is highly probable and presents an exposure to variations in cash flows that could uitimalely affect the statement of profit or
loss.

The Company has early adopted Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Amendments to IFRS'9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 which include a number of
reliefs, that apply to ali hedging relationships directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. The reliefs apply during the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate { “RFR” ). A hedging relationship is affected i interest
rate henchmark reform gives tise to uncertainties about the timing and or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the
hedging instrument. The reliefs cease to apply once certain conditions are met. These include when the uncertainty arising from IBOR reform
is no longer present with respect 1o the timing and amount of the benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item, if the hedging relationship
is discontinued or once amounts in the cash flow hedge reserve have been released.

Fair value hedges

For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the change in fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised in the statement of profit or lass
in ‘Gains and losses on financial instruments at fair value’. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is
recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in *gains and losses on financial
instruments at fair value.'

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accouning,
the hedge relalionship is terminated, and the face value is amaortised over the remaining term of the original hedge using the effective interest
method. If the hedge is derecognised, the unamortised fair value adjustment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

In accordance with its wider risk management, it is the Company's strategy to apply fair value hedge accounting to keep inlerest rate
sensitivities within its established limits. Applying fair value hedge accounting enables the Company to reduce fair vaiue fluctuations of fixed
rate financial assets as if they were floating rate instruments linked to the attributable benchrnark rates. From a hedge accounting point of
view, the Company designales the hedged risk as the exposure o changes in the fair value of a recognised financial asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such financial assets, Habilities or firm commitments that is attributable to a
particular risk and could affect profit or loss. The Company only hedges changes due to interest rates, which are typically the most significant
component of the overall fair value change. The Company assesses hedge effectiveness by comparing fair value movements of the hedging
instruments and the hedged items attributable to changes in these benchmark rates using the hypothetical derivative method as set out -
above. In accordance with its hedging strategy, the Company matches the principal of the hedging instruments to the principal of the hedged
items, including prepayment expectations. The Company uses pay fixed/receive floating interest rate swaps to hedge its fixed rate debt
instruments.

Hedge ineffectiveness can arise from:
+  Differences in timing of cash flows of hedged items and hedging instruments
«  Different interest rate curves applied to discount the hedged items and hedging instruments

+ Derivatives used as hedging instruments having a non-nil fair value at the time of designation
= The effect of changes in counterparties’ credit risk on the fair values of hedging instruments or hedged items
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.1.6. Hedge accounting (continued)}

Micro fair vatue hedges

A fair value hedge relationship is a 'Micro fair value hedge’ when the hedged item {or group of items) is a distinctively identifiable asset or
liability hedged by one or a few hedging instruments. The financial instruments hedged for interest rate risk in a micro fair value hedge
relationship are fixed rate debt instruments al FVOCI and fixed rate issued long-term deposits. These hedge relationships are assessed for
prospective and retrospective hedge effectiveness on a monthly basis. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or
when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, or the Company decides to voluntarily discontinue the hedging
relationship, the hedge relationship is discontinued prospectively. If the relationship does not meet the hedge effectiveness criteria, the
company discontinues hedge accounting from the last date on which compliance with hedge efiectiveness was demonstrated. i the hedge
accounting relationship is terminated for an item recorded at amortised cost, the accumulated fair value hedge adjustment to the camying
amount of the hedged itern is amortised over the remaining term of the original hedge by recalculating the EIR. If the hedged item is
derecognised, the unamortised fair value adjusiment is recognised immediately in the income statement. For fair value hedge relationships
where the hedged item is not measured at amortised cost, such as debt instruments at FVOCI, changes in fair value that were recorded in the
income statement whilst hedge accounting was in place are amortised in a similar way to amortised cost instruments using the EIR method.
However, as these instruments are measured at their fair values in the statement of financial position, the fair value hedge adjustments are
transferred from the income statement to OCI, There were no such instances in either the cusrent year of in the comparative year. The
Company has designaled micro hedge relationships as fair value hedges.

3.1.7. Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fulure cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, ransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period. This effective interest rate is calculated on the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the Company
applies the effective interest rate 10 the amortised cost less impairment of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

3.2. Revenue Recognition

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets and liabilities held for
trading.

For non-financial assets and habilities, such as fees and commissions income are recognised using the principles of IFRS1S5,
To apply these principles of IFRS15 the Company follows a five-step model framework:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

IFRS 15 defines a contract as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the
criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the contract.

A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.
Step 3. Determine the transaction price,

The transaction price is the amount of consideration (for example, payment) to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.

For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, an entity should allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation in
an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the entity expects to be entitied in exchange for satisfying each performance
cbiigation.

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.2 Revenue Recognition (confinued)

3.2.1, Net interest income
Net interest income comprises income from banking activities, namely interest receivable on loans, advances, deposits placed and investment
in debt Securities less interest payable on deposits taken. Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effeclive interest method.

3.2.2. Fees and commissions

Fees and commissions not included as part of the effective interest rate are recognised on an accruals basis. Arrangement fees are booked
as deferred income on the balance sheet and recognised in the profit and loss account over the period of the arrangement, as per the steps
described in IFRS 15.

3.2.3. Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive payment is established.

3.3, Foreign Currency )

The financial statements are presented in Great British Pounds (“GBP™), which is the currency of the primary economit environment in which
the Company operates (its functional currency). Unless otherwise stated, all inforrmation presented in GBP has been rounded 1o the nearest
thousand.

3.3.1. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies, other than the functional currency, are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities dencminated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in temms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on transactions entered
into to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

3.3.2. Exchange rates
The following major exchange rates have been used in preparing the financial statements.

Closing rale Averapge rate
One GBP wquals 2018 2014 2018 2018
Euro ("EUR™) 1.176 1.117 1.144 1.130
US Dollar (*USD") 1.320 1,279 ' 1.280 1.331

3.4. Investments in subsidiaries
The carmying value of the Company's investments in subsidiary undertakings is stated at historical cost less any provision for impairment.

3.6. Interests in associates

Participating interests are investments in companies, not being subsidiaries, whose directors include representatives of the Company, The
Company intends to hold these investments long term with the purpose of securing a contribution to the Company’s profits. Such interests are
stated at cost less any provision for impairment.
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3. Significant accounting policies {continued)

3.6. Taxation

3.6.1. Current Tax

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign 1ax, is provided at amounts expected io be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit or loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.

3.6.2. Deferred tax )
Deferred fax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assels are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assels and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goedwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the aceounting
profit.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would foliow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and labilities. The carrying amount
of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufiicient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is:

= Calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled, or the asset is realised based on tax laws
and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

= Charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited in other comprehensive income,
in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income.

Daferred tax assels and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation autherity and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

3.6.3. Current tax and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items thal are recognised in other comprehensive income
or direclly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in aquity
respectively.

3.7. Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assels are stated at cos\, net of depreciation and any preovision for impairment. They are written off on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives as foliows:

= Leasehold properties 3 years
= Computerequipment_____ 3 S-years
» Furniture, fidures and fittings 10 years

The canrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the camrying value
may not be recoverable.

3.8. Intangible assets

3.8.1. Goodwiil

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equily interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. ¥, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assurmed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised on the balance sheet and
recognised in profit or loss over time. Any contingent consideration is included in the cost of the acquisition to the extent that the payment is
considered probable and the amount can be measured reliably, if the potential adjustment is not recognised at acquisition date but
subsequently becomes probable and can be measured reliably, the additional consideration is treated as an adjustment to the cost of the
combination.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.8.1 Goodwili (continued)

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment annually. For the purpose of impaimment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Company's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. i the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to-the unit and then to the subsequent periods if, and enly if, the reasons for the impairment loss
have ceased to apply.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

3.8.2. Software and development costs
Software expenditures on individual projects are recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

» The technical feasibility of completing the intangibie asset so that the asset will be available for use;
* [ts intention to complete and its ability and intention to use the asset;

= How the asset will generate future economic benefits;

= The availability of resources to complete the asset; and

= The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of the expenditures as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete, and the asset is available for use. 1t is amortised over the
expected future useful lives of between 3 and 5 years or assessed individually where deemed significant.

3.9 Leases

The Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for significant leases where applicable. The Company recognises
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset and interest expense on the lease liability in the statement of profit and loss. Short-term
leases, which are defined as those that have a lease term of 12 months or less; and leases of low-value assets are exempt.

3.10. Pension costs
The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme and contributes to the Société Générale scheme. Contributions are charged to
the profit and loss account as they becoime payable in accordance with the rules of the schemes. '

3.11. Provision for liabilities
A provision is recognised when the Campany has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is prebable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation.

3.12. Share-based payment

. The Company’s employees receive share-based payments from the parent company, Société Générale SA. Details of these can be found in

Nole 10.

Equity-settied share-based payments lo emplovees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. The fair vaiue excludes the effect of non-market- based vesting conditions. Details regarding the determination
of the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in Note 10.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is charged to the statement of profit or joss based on
the Company's estimate of eguity instruments that will eventually vest. At each balance sheet date, the Company revises its eslimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the originat estimate (if any) is recognised as a profit or loss such
that the cumuiative expense reflects the revised estimate {with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based contribution reserves).

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognised for the services received, measured initially at the fair value of the liability. At

each balance sheet date until the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liability is remeasured with any changes
in fair value recognised in the statemen? of profit or loss for the year.
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4. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognised in the year in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision and future years if the revision affects both
current and future years.

The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the mos't significant effects on amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

4.1. Impairment of loans and advances to customers “

Judgement is required to determine the amount of impairment in the customer locan portfolio. Note 14 shows the ievel of pravision that has
been made against those assets within that portfolio. The level of judgement is described in note 26.3.

4.2, Impairment assessment of goodwill

Management assess the potential impairment of goodwill on an annual basis using a discounted cash flow mode! to assess the value in use.
Management judgement is apptied in the level of cash generating unit {(which is the whole Company}, future revenue forecasts and the
discount rate applied. Note 17 shows the impact of management's assessment.

4.3, Provision for liabilities
Management use judgement based on all information available at the time of preparing the financial statements to estimate the level of
provision required, Note 23 shows the level of provision held at year end.

4.4. Fair value of unquoted equity instruments
The unquoted equity instruments have been vaiued based on the net asset vaiue and are subject to uncertainty due to the lack of observable

market! prices for these instruments.

4.5. Impairment of software
Management assess the potential impairment of software on an annual basis using a value-in-use model. Management judgement is applied
in the cost of remaining development, future level of cost saved, and the discount rate applied.

4.6. Deferred tax asset recoverabitity

Management assess the recoverability of the deferred tax assel recognised in the balance sheet. Management judgment is applied in the
future level of profitability of the Company and ather companies within the SG Group that are eligible for group relief where this is applicable to
aspects of tax that can be relieved in this manner. A 20% fall in forecast future profitability over the next 3 years would lead to a 20%
reduction in the value of the deferred tax asset recognised with respect to the use of tax losses.

5. Net interest income

interest income and expense by financial instruments

____ Interest income receivable_and.payable_is_recognised-on-an-efiective-interest-method-(ElM)-basis:

2019
(In GBP thousands) Amortised cost FVOCI Total
Due from banks 1,110 - 1,110
Loans and advances to customers 33,485 - 33,485
Investment securities - 12,732 12,732
interest income 34,595 12,732 47,327
Due to banks : (54) - (54)
Deposits due to customers (14,195) - {14,195)
Others (8) - 6)
Interest expense (14,255) - (14,255)
Net interest income 20,340 12,732 33,072
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5. Net interest income {continued)

2018

{In GBP thousands) Amorised cost FVOCH Total
Due from banks 1,048 - 1,048
Loans and advances o customers 34,497 - 34,497
Investment securities - 15,748 15,748
Interest income 35,545 15,748 51,293
Due to banks (158} - (158)
Deposits due to customers {11,497) - {11,497)
Interest expense (11,655) - (11,655)
Net interest income 23,891 15,748 39,638

6. Net fee and commission income

Asset management fees are generally based on an agreed percentage of the valuation of the client’s Assets under Management ("AuM") and

are recognised as the service is provided and it is almost certain that the fee will be received. If fees are received in advance, the amounts
received are only recognised in profit and loss once the Company provides the service for which the client has paid. :

Brokerage income comprises fees charged to customers, primarily from corporate finance and private banking transactions. Revenues from
trust and fiduciary activities are recognised based on the value of work done and estimated recovery rates. Retail banking customer fees

comprise fees charged for the provision of accounts and cther retail banking services to customers and are recognised over the duration that

services are provided. -

{In GBP thousands} 2019 2018
Asset management fees 26,176 28,91
Brokerage 1,450 1,726
Corporate commissions 5815 4,024
Financial advisory fees 1,599 1,865
Retail hanking customer fees 15,850 13,906
Other 105 026
Fee and commission income 50,995 51,348
Brokerage (901) (937}
Other (103) {125}
Fea and commission expense {1,004) {1,062}
Net fee and commission income . 49,991 50,286

Included in asset management fees is £1.1m (2018: £0.9m) of fee income relating 1o trust and other fiduciary activities.
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7. Gains and losses on financial instruments at fair value

The Company's treasury portfolio includes investments in liquid high-quality corporate bonds. These bonds are measured at fair vatue and are
classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income “OCI" under IFRS 8 as explained in Nole 3. The gains and losses representing
unrealised market movements are recognised in OC!, which are then recycled o the statement of profit or loss upon realisation of the bond.
Also recognised in this line of the statement of profit or loss are any gains and losses on derivative instruments held for trading purposes.

The net gains on ilems at fair value by financial asset class are as follows:

{!'n GBP thousands) Af fair value through Al fair value through OCI i%-t;-
profit or loss until reafised
Gains from sales of debt securities and corporate bonds - 3,617 3617
Losses from sales of debt securities and corporate bonds - {3,342) (3.342)
Hedge ineffectiveness from fair value hedging:
- Gains on hedged items atiributable to the hedged risk 11,987 - 11,987
- Losses on hedging instruments (12,500) . (12,500)
Foreign exchange loss (1,431) - {1.421)
Other interest rate instruments {331} - (591)
Total (2,275) 275 {2,000}
2018
{in GBP thousands) At fair valus through A Tair value 1hrough OCI Total
profit of loss until realised
Gains from sales of debt securities and corporate bonds - 224 224
Losses from sales of debt securities and corporate bonds - (4,070) (4,070)
Hedge ineffectiveness from fair value hedging:
- Losses on hedged items attributable to the hedged risk (2,146) - {2,146}
- Gains on hedging instruments 2,568 - 2,568
Foreign exchange loss (456) - (458)
Other interest rate instruments 117 - 117
Total 83 (3,846) {3,763)

8. Dividend Income

During the year the Company received dividends totalling £1.3 m (2018: £64.8 m} from its subsidiaries. These dividends in 2018 were the

result of excess capital being released from those subsidiaries.

9. Administrative expenses

The Company's general administrative costs are recognised when the service is provided to the Company.

The largest component of expenses are personnel expenses, which includes wages and salaries, the cost of other benefits provided to

employees, the cost to the company of the tax thereon and variable compensation.

{In GB inousends) 2019 2018
Personnel expenses (Note 9.1) 53,611 61,164
Professional fees 5,618 7,084
Rent, leases and premises costs 3,933 4,800
IT costs 4,239 4,356
Indirect tax and levies 5,496 8,187
Other administrative costs 3gg 13,183
Intersompany recharges to SG Group entities (268) (12,114)
Intercompany recharges from SG Group entities 3,587 3,025
Total 76,615 90,695

In 2018 the Company wrote off significant project costs relating to the implementation of a new banking system. £8.8m of previously
capitalised costs are included in cther administrative expenses for that year.
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9. Administrative expenses (continued)

9.1. Personnel expenses

{in GBP thousands) 2018 2018

. Wages and salaries 33,437 34,805
Temporary staff 10,371 14,279
Compulsory social security contributions 4,408 5,592
Contributions te defined contribution plans 2,538 2,662
Share-based payment transactions a7 774
Restructuring expenses — redundancy costs 2,144 1,117
Other staff costs 616 1,935

“Total 53,611 61,164

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

The average number of employees employed by the Company was: 428 (2018: 472) .

2018 2018
Full time employees 330 342
Contract and temporary employees 59 130
Total 429 472

9.2. Audit fees
Audit fees include fees payable to the Company's auditors, Ernst & Young, for the audit of the annual accounts and those of its UK based
subsidiaries, together with related assurance services:

{in GBP thousands) 201e 2018
Audit fees 703 494
Audit of subsidiaries k1] 36
Assurance services 100 80
Total fees payable to the Company’s auditors 839 610

Other services proviged by the auditors to the Company are subject to independence checks both by the auditors and the Company and must
comply with SG Group’s auditor independence policies.

9.3, Operating lease commitments

The Company does not hold the legal title to the leases on either 8 St James's Square, 14 St George Street or 1 Bank Street, but has an
obligation to pay rentals on the leases to Société Générale London Branch as the space is used. 14 St George Street is now vacated by the
Company and most of the space has been sub-let. A provision of £0.9m, maturing in 2020, has been recognised for the remaining vacant
space as disclosed in Note 23.

974 Pension cost

All employees are cavered by SG Group pension schemes, subject to their satisfying minimum entry requirements. The schemes are of both
the defined benefit and defined contribution type. The total pension cost for the Company was £2.5m (2018: £2.7m).

Defined Benefit Scheme

The Company participates in a defined benefit scheme under common control, known as the SG UK Defined Benefit Scheme ("the Scheme”).
This Scheme is not open to new members. The Scheme was created with effect from 1 January 2004 following the merger of the Saciété
Générale Group Retirement and Death Benefit Scheme for United Kingdom Staff (the London Branch Scheme)} and the Société Générale
Strauss Tumbull Securities Limited Pension Scheme (the SGST Scheme) with the SG Hambros Scheme. Following consultation with the
members of the Scheme, the Scheme was closed to alt future accruals from 31 March 2016, The Company is unable to identify on a
consistent and reasonable basis its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the Scheme; hence the Bank recognises the pension costs
as they become due.
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9. Administrative expenses (continued)
9.4, Pension cost {continued)
Defined Benefit Scheme {continued)

The total defined benefit pension costs and contribution for the Company was £Nil in 2019 (2018: £Nil). The Company is invoiced by Société
Générale London Branch for the share of service costs on an annual basis. As required, the Company pays contributions to Société Générale
London Branch for the Company's employees in the scheme.

Defined Contribution Scheme

The Company also provides employees with access to a defined contribution scheme, the “SG Money Purchase Scheme”. Contributions to
this scheme were £3 during the year (2018: £2.7 m). No contributions were outstanding at the year end. The contributions to this scheme
currently range from 4% to 15.0% of pensionable salary.

10. Share-based payments
Employees of the Company have benefited from participation in the following share schemes offered by Société Générale SA (“SG™):

Global Employee Share Ownership (“GESOP")
Employees of the Company pariicipated in a GESOF scheme where the Company will match the employee's contributions in previous years.
The scheme was reinitiated in 2019 with approximately 10% of the UK population participating.

Ambition and Long-Term incentive share schemes

Employees are offered performance shares issued by SG subject to the achievement of certain targets .as set out by SG, namely presence
and performance conditions. The performance shares are awarded each year and have a vesting period of three years. The number of
unvested shares outstanding as at 31 December 2019 was 12,627 (2018: 18,450) amounting to £455,000 (2018: £535,498) based on the
reference price of the scheme in which the share was awarded. The Company does not pay SG for any of these shares issued. The value of
these shares issued lo the Company are recognised as additional capital contribution in accordance with IFRS 2.

UK Share plan

The Share Incentive plan allows employees to purchase SG shares from gross pay. For every four partnership shares bought, SG will match
one additional share. An employee may contribute £10-£125 each month from gross pay up to a maximum of 10% of gross pay. Matching
shares are paid by the Company on a monthly basis.

Société Générale Fidelity Plan (8G Fidelity Plan)
The Company issues share linked bonuses to selected employees. The vesting periods of these bonuses are three years from the date of
declaration of the bonus. The employees will only be entitied to these bonuses on the condition that they are still employed by the Company
at the scheduled payment dates during the vesting period. These bonuses are cash settled and the Company hedges the effect of the
movement of SG share price to reduce market risk.

The valuations of the Fidelity plan as accrued in the financial statements are based on the prevailing market price as at 31 December 2018.
At balance sheet date, the fair value of the Company's portion of the final liability under the plan is £1m (2018: £2.3 m) and the element of this
valuation relating to variation in the price of SG shares since declaration was £0.3m (2018: £0.4 m). The total profit and loss recognised in

the year related to this scheme was an expense_of.£0.04m_(2018..£4.2-/m)-
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11. Income tax

The Company is liable to tax at rates according to the relevant legisiation in the jurisdictions in which it operates. Income tax comprises
current (taxes payable for the reporting period) and deferred tax. Taxes are typically recognised in the income statement except to the extent
that the tax relates to items recognised in cther comprehensive income in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income.

11.1. Tax credited in the income statement

{In GBP thousands) 2018 2018
UK corporation tax
Current year (credit) / charge at 19% {2018: 19%) (2,791) (545)
Bank surcharge credit at 8% - (181)
Prior year 248 (272)
' {2,543) (998)
Deferred tax
Current year movement 19% / 27% 833 (2,072)
Revaluation due to change in tax rates 581 N
Prior year adjustment (78) 5
1,336 (2,067)
Total tax (credit)/charge on (loss)iprofit on ordinary activities {1,207} {3,065)

11.2. Reconcitiation of effective tax rate
The tax charge / (credit} on the loss / profit on ordinary activities for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
19% (2018: 27%). The differences are reconciled below:

{Iin GBP thousands}) 2019 2018
Profit / {lass) before income tax ' (35,202) 59,145
Income tax using domestic corporation tax @ 19% (2018: 27%) (6,688) 15,969
Permanent differences 4979 534
Non-taxable income (249) (17,498)
Accelerated capita! allowances and tax balances transferred with the KB banking trade - (1,171}
Deferred tax revaluation 581 -
Use of historical tax losses - (832)
Prior year adjustment 170 (267)
Total Income tax (group tax ralief)/expense (1,207) (3,065)

11.3. Tax relating to items charged or credited to other comprehensive income
in addition to the amount charged to the statement of profit or {oss, the foliowing amounts relating 10 1ax have been recognised in other
comprehensive income, )

{In GBP thousands) 2018 2018

Arising on income and expenses recognised in QCI:

Revaluation of FVOCI financial assets 383 (739)
IFRS 9 FTAECL 86 (290)
Total income tax (credit)/charge recognised in OCI 469 (1,028)

11.4. Change in Corporation Tax rate

Legislation was infroduced in Finance Act 2015 to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 20% to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017, and
to 18% with effect from 1 Apri| 2020. A further measure in the 2016 Finance Act reduced the main rate of corporation tax to 17% with effect
from 1 April 2020. These reductions are taken into account when calculating the deferred tax rate used in the accounts. The banking
surcharge of 8% applies to all profits over £25m for the UK group that the Company is part of.

11.5. Deferred tax

Deferred tax assels are recognised to the extent that they are more likely than not to be recovered. The Company recognised deferred tax
assets and liabilities at the rates of 17% (2018: 25%).
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11. Income tax (continued)

11.5 Deferred tax (continued)

On 11 March 2020 it was announced (and substantively enacled on 17 March 2020) that the UK corporation tax rate would remain at 19%
and not reduce to 17% (the previously enacted rate) from 1 April 2020. The deferred tax balances included within the accounts have been
calculated with reference to the rate of 17%, as required under FRS 101. However, following the substantive enactment of the rate of 19%, it
is anticipated that the reversal of timing differences will occur at this rate and that the maximum impact on the quantum of the net deferred lax

asset recognised will be o increase this by £269k

Deforred tax is recognised and included in the balance sheet for the following assets and Habilities:

{In GBP thousands) 2018 2018
Deferred tax assets
Accelerated capital allowances 3,083 2,302
Employee share scheme 108 160
Deferred bonus 83 171
IFRS 9 FTAECL 155 259
Losses 0 1,869
Total deferred tax assets 3,439 4,781
{In GBP thousands) 2019 2018
Deferred tax liabilities
FVOCI movement on debt securities (1.151) (641)
Total deferrad tax liabilities {1,151) (641)
Net deferred tax asset 2,288 4,140
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legaily enforceable right to do sa.
The following deferred tax assets have not been recognised:
(In GBF thousands) 2019 2018
Losses 17,719 16,418
Accelerated capital allowances 0 3,165
17,719 19,583

No deferred tax asset has been recognised wilh respect to the use of historical insses due to the uncertainty of future taxable profits in the
Company, in the short-term, against which they are allowed be used. The deferred tax asset relating to accelerated capital allowances is

recognised as these allowances can be used to offset profits made in other UK entities within the SG group.

44



{Page 45 of 71}

Notes to the Financial Statements

12. Financial instruments

Accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
bases for recognition of income and expenses) for each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note
3

12.1. Financial assets and liabilities
The Company's classification of its principal financial assets and liabilities, together with a comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values

of the Company's principal financial assets and liabilities is summarised as follows:

12.1.1. Financial assets

2019 2019
{in GBP thousands} Fair value FV through OCI Amortised cost Canrying ameunt Fair Value
through profit
or loss
Cash and balances at central banks - - 52,993 52,993 52,993
Derivative assets 7.130 - - 7,130 7.130
Loans and advances to banks (Note 13) - - 41,744 41,744 41,744
Loans and advances to customers (Note 14) - - 1,119,362 1,119,382 1,119,362
Debt and investment securities (Note 15) - 846,575 - 846,575 846,575
Total 7,130 846,675 1,214,099 2,067,804 2,067,804
2018 2018
(In GBP thousanas) Fair value FV through OCI Amortised cost Carrying amount Fair Value
through prof
or loas
Cash and halances at central banks - - 169,360 169,360 169,360
Derivative agsets 12,342 - - 12,342 12,342
Loans and advances to banks (Note 13) - - 31,344 31,344 31,344
Loans and advances to customers (Note 14) - - 1,074 474 1,074,474 1,074,474
Debt and investment securities (Note 15) - 1,253,521 . 1,253,521 1,253,521
Total 12,342 1,253,521 1,275,178 2,541,041 2,541,041

The fair values of the Company's financial assets are approximate to their carrying value, as the cash and due to banks balances are short
term in nature by virtue of either being on call or due within 3 months. Loans to customers are longer term in nature, however, the interest on
these loans is generally reset on a 3-monthly basis. As such the margins on the loans approximate 1o current spreads that would apply for
balances with similar maturities. Furthermore, the high credit quality of the asset credit ratings means that the carrying value approximates to
the current fair value.
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12. Financial instruments {continued)

12.1.2. Financial liabilities

2019 2018
{In GBP thousands) - Al tair value Amortised cost Camying amount Fair value
through profit or
loss
Deposits by banksg - (t1,543) (11,543} {11,543)
Customers' accounts - {1,836,229) (1,836,229) {1,836,229)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (9,526) - {9,526) (9,526)
Derivative liabilities {6,307) - {6,307) {6.307)
Total {15,833) {1,847,772) (1,863,605) - (1,863,605)
2018 018
{In GBP thousands) Al Fair value Amostised cost Carrying amouni Fair value
through profit or
loss
Deposits by banks - (41,768) (41,768} (41,768)
Customers' accounts - (2,191,216) (2,191,216} (2,191,216}
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (35,478) - (35,478) (35,478)
Derivative liabilities (6,049) - (6,049) {6,049)
Total (41,527} (2,232,984} (2,274,511} (2,274,511}

The fair value of the Company's financial liabilities ts not materially different from their balance sheet value, as a result of deposits by banks
generally being short term in nature {either on call or due within 3.months) and customer deposits mostly having interest resets every 3
months. As such the margins on the loans approximate to cumrent spreads that would apply to balances with similar maturities,

12.2. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities:
The following financial instruments are recorded at fair value using valuation techniques. These incorporate the Company's estimate of
assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the instruments:

Derivatives

Derivative products valyed using a valuation technique with market observable inputs are mainly options, interest rate swaps and forward
foreign exchange contracts. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models, using present value
calculations. The models incorporate varicus inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
interest rate curves, IRS are for fair value hedges until they are offset prior to full disposal. Forward foreign exchange contracts are hetd for
trading.

FVOC!
FVOCI financial assets are valued using quoted market prices or pricing models. These assets are valued using models incorporating data
observable in the market.

12.3. Valuation meathods of financial instruments at fair value
The following_tables provide an analysis_of financial_instruments_recorded-at-net{fair-value-by-the-level-of-the—fair-value-hierarchy —The
hierarchy levels are defined in note 2.

During the reporting period ending 31 December 2019, there were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy (2018: Ni¥).
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12. Financial instruments {continued)

12.3.1. Financial assets measured at fair value:

20198
{in GBP thousands} Levei 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
FVPL: Derivative financial instruments:
- Interest rate swaps - 2,439 - 2,439
- Forward foreign exchange contracts - 4,691 - 4,691
FVPL: Debt and investment securities
- Unquoted equities - - 511 51
FVOCI: debt and investment securities
«  Government debt securities 224,978 - - 224,978
- Fixed rate bonds 448,493 - - 448,493
- Other debt securities 134,262 - - 134,262
- Certificate of deposits - 38,31 - 38,331
Total financial assets measured at fair value 807,733 45,461 511 853,705
2018
{in GBP thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FVPL: Derivative financial instruments:
- interest rate swaps - 7,754 - 7,754
- Forward foreigh exchange contracts - 4 588 - 4,588
FVPL: Debt and investment securities
- Unguoted equities - - 456 456
FVOCI: debt and investment securities
- Government debl securities 267,387 - - 267,387
- Fixed rate bonds 548,624 - - 548,624
- Other debt securities 410,169 - - 410,169
- Cerificate of deposits - 26,884 - 26,884
Total financial assets measured at fair value 1,226,180 39,226 458 1,265,863
12.3.2. Financial liabilities measured at fair vatue
2018
In GBP thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Derivative financial instruments:
- Interest rate swaps - (524) - {524)
- Forward foreign exchange contracts - (5.671) - (5,671}
- Equity Options ) - (112) - {112)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Options on customer accounts linked o interest - (9,526) - (9,526)
rate swaps
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value - {15,833} . (15,833)
2018
in GBP thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Toial
Derivative financial instruments:
- Interest rate swaps - (1,925) - {1,925)
- Forward foreign exchange contracts - (3.830} - {3,830)
- Equity Options - (294} - (294)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Optlions on customer accounts linked 1o interest - {35,478) - {35,478)
rale swaps
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value - (41.527) - {41,527)
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12. Financial instruments {continued)

12.3.3. Movements of Level 3 unquoted equities

(In GBP thousands) 2019 2018
Balance brought forward 1 January 456, 5677
Purchases 80 23
Sales {25) (244)
Revaluations oL -
Balance carried forward 31 December 511 456

Directors’ key judgements and assumptions for level 3:
The Company has challenged the future forecasted cash flows of the entities that it is holding as FVPL. Valuations of these investments are
based on a forecast model, which the Company believes is probable at the date of the financial statements. The sensitivity of valuations is
based on the expected future profitability of the entilies. The valuation of the investment securities is sensitive to future profitability being

greater or less than management forecast.

12.4 Hedges

As part of its asset and liability management, the Company entered intc fair value hedges to reduce its exposure 1o changes in fair value of
finarciat assets and liabilities due to movement in interest rates. The hedged items for these fair value hedge relationships of interest rate risk
are long-term customer deposits and FVOCI debt securities.

As at 31 December 2018 the Company had no fixed rate financial liabilities (2018: £nil) and £422.6 m of fixed rate financial assets (2018
£375.7 m) hedged by interest rate swaps in fair value hedge relationships. The accumulated amount of fair value adjusiments on the hedged

item is £5.8m (2018: £6.7 m)

The Company did not designate any instrument as a cash flow hedge in either year.

12.5. Maturity of derivative financial instruments

The maturity profile of derivative financial assets and liabilities is shown below:

12.5.1. Derivative financial assets

2018

(in GBP Ihoysands) Less lhan 3 3-6 months 6-12 months 1o Syears Over 5 years Fair value
months

Derivative held for trading:

- Interest rate swaps 1,005 858 484 - - 2,347

- Forward foreign exchange contracts 637 10 3,880 164 - 4,601

Derivatives used as fair value hedges:

- Interest rate swaps - - 59 33 92

Total derivative assets 1,642 __868 —4,364 223 33 130

2018

{in GBP thousands) Laess than 3 3-6 monihs §-12 months 110 5years Over 5 years Fair value
months

Derivative held for trading:

- Interest rate swaps ' 326 154 167 698 - 1,345

- Forward foreign exchange contracis 2,714 27 1,675 173 - 4,589

Derivatives used as fair value hedges:

- Interest rate swaps 2 641 113 2,943 2,708 6,408

Total derivative assets 3,042 822 1,955 3,814 2,709 12,342
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12. Financial instruments (continued)

12.5.2. Derivative financial liabilities

2018
{in GBP thousands) Less than 3 3-6 months & 12 monihs 1105 years Over 5 years Fair value
monins
Derivative heid for trading:
- Forward foreign exchange contracts (1,672) {10) (3.826) {163) - (5,671)
- Equity option {112) - - - - (112)
- Options on customer accounts linked to (4,701) - (4,825) ~ - {9,526)
interest rate swaps
Derivatives used as fair value hedges:
- Interest rate swaps (109) {1} - (294) (120) (524)
Total derivative liabilities (6,594) {(11) (8.651) (457) (120) {15,833)
2018
{in GBP thousands) Less than 2 3-§ months 6-12 months 110 5 years Over 5 years Fair value
months
Derivative held for trading:
- Forward foreign exchange contracts (2,042) 27) {1,591} (170) - (3,830)
- Equity option (294) - - - - (294)
- Options on customer accounts linked to (16,768) - (11,303) (7,407) - (35,478)
interest rate swaps
Derivatives used as fair value hedges:
- Interest rate swaps {79) (1,216) (815} (15) - {1,925)
Total derivative liabilities {19,183) (1,243) {13,509) (7,592) - (41,527)

The undiscounted cash flows of derivative financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from the maturity analysis above.

13. Loans and advances to banks

Placements with, and loans and advances to banks typically represent investments the Company has made in money market and short-term
deposits of other finantial institutions. ’

{ln GBP thousanda} 2018 2018
Credit institutions 41,744 31,344
Total 41,744 31,344

Included in loans and advances to credit institutions are £8 .3 m (2018: £7.9 m) in unsubordinated loans, due from group undertakings.

13.1. Contractual maturity of loans and advances to banks

(In GBP thousands) 2019 2018
Repayable on demand 41,744 31,344
Total 41,744 31,344

All of these assets have been assessed as Stage 1 for IFRS9 provision assessment. Due to the high-grade nature of these assets’ classes in
the bank's current portfolio, the provision calculated under IFRS 9 for these assets is immaterial to the financial statements of the Company.
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14. Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers represents amounts the Company has lent to customers, typically in the form of mortgages or other

secured lending.

{in GBP thousands) 2019 2018
Retail morigages 836,349 827,576
Other loans 287,701 250,797
Total 1,124,050 1,078,373
Impairment (4,688) (3,899)
Total 1,119,362 1,074,474

No ampunts were due from group undertakings.

The Company considers that the fair value of loans and advances 10 customers closely approximates to the reported amortised cost, as the

interest rate of the loans are ficating and are re-fixed over a short-term period.
There were no write-offs during the year (2018: Nil)

14.1. Contractual maturity of loans and advances to customers

{In GBP thousands) 2018 2018

Repayable on demand 345,206 165,522

Remaining maturity:

- Between 1 day and 3 months 29,871 49,156

- Between 3 months and 1 year 143,762 158,497

- Greater than 1 year 605121 705,198
1,124,050 1,078,373

14.2. Impairment of 1oans and advances to customers

The table below shows the credit quality and the maxirmum exposure to credit risk based on the Company’s intemat credit rating system and

year-ehd stage classification. The amounts presented are net of impairment allowances.

2019

2018

{tn GBP thousands} Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Totlal Tolal

Lombard 221,321 1,475 - - 222,796 228,172
Real estate 838,070 4,315 - 842,385 826,814
Asset-backed 1,808 - - 1,809 2210
Non-guaranteed 10.856 15 1 10,075 12,508
Defaulted - - 41,497 41,497 4770
Total 1,072,056 5,805 41,501 1,419,362 1,074,474

An analysis of changes in the gross canying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in refation 1o loans and advances to customers is

as follaws: .
2018 2018
{In GBP housands) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
Gross carrying amount as at 01 January 1,064,790 5,332 8,251 1,078,373 1,171,661
Transfer to stage 1 2,606 - {2.608) - -
Transfer to stage 3 (5.099) (12) 5111 - -
Net loans criginated / (repaid) 6,276 562 38,839 45677 (93,288)
Gross carrying amount at 31 December 1,073,672 5,894 44,484 1,124,050 1,078,372

50



{Page S1 of 71)

Notes to the Financial Statements

14. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

14.2. Impairment of loans and advances to customers (continued)

Impaiment allowance for lpans and advances

2019 2018
(In GBP Ihousands) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
Gross carrying amount as at 01 January 1,414 63 2,422 3,899 3,056
Impact of adopting IFRS9 - - - - 1,027
Transfer to stage 1 2,606 - (2,606} - -
Transfer to stage 3 (5,099) {12) 5111 - -
Increase / (decrease) in provision 2,683 49 (1,943) 789 (184)
Gross carrying amount at 31 December 1,604 100 2,984 4,688 3,899

The increase in provision in stage 1 is driven by the increase in the assessment of probability of defautt as a result of more data and

experience improving the model.

No amount has been recovered from previously written off client loans in 2018 (2018: £nil). Included within the year-end stage 3 provision is

an amount of £737k (2018: specific provision - £238k) relating to interest.

Details on the management of credit risks are explained in accounting policy Notes 3.1.2 and further explained in the credil risk management

Note 26.3.

15. Debt and investment securities

The investment securities primarily consist of & high quality, liquid treasury porifolio, which is managed within the KH Group Treasury

mandate.

{In GBP thousands} 2019 2018
Quoted investments

Fixed rate bonds 448,493 548,625
Other debt securities:

- Government debt securities 224,878 267,387
- Floating Rate notes 134,262 410,169
- Certificate of deposits 38,331 26,884
Unquoted investments

Equity holdings 511 456
Total 846,575 1,253,521

All of debt and investment securities have been assessed as Stage 1 for IFRS 9 provision assessmenl. Due 1o the high-grade nature of these
assets' classes in the bank’s current portfolio, the provision calculated under IFRS 9 for these assets is immaterial to the financial stalements

of the Company.
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16. Shares in group undertakings

2018 2018
{in GBP thousands) Subsidiar Tolal ryyr— = Total
Cost
At 1 January ’ 231,357 1,838 233,195 231,357 1,740 233,097
Exchange movements - (58) (58) - 98 a8
At 31 December 231,357 1,780 233,137 231,357 1,838 233,195
Provision for impairment
At 1 January (5) {307) (312) {5} {290) (295)
Exchange movements - 10 10 - {(17) “n
At 31 December {5) (297) (302) (5) (307) (312)
Net Book Value at 31 December 231,352 1,483 232,835 231,352 1,531 232,883

16.1. Ownership interest in subsidiaries
All of the shares in subsidiary undertakings are unlisted. The costs of investments in principal subsidiary undenakings are:

{In GBF thousands) Location Business type 2019 2018
Credit institutions and financial advisors
SG Kleinwort Hambros Bank {Channel Islands} Ltd. St Helier, Jersey Bank 200,842 200,842
SG Kleinwont Hambros Bank (Gibraltar) Ltd. Gibraltar Bank 30,000 30,000
5G Kieinwort Hambros Trust Company (UK) Limited London, UK Trust company 250 250
SG Hambros Trust Company Lid. London, UK Trust company 250 250
8GH Trust Co (Canada) Inc. London, UK Trust company - -
SG Hambros Nominee London London, UK Nominee - -
St George St Capital {KB) Lid Lendon, UK Holding - -
Robert Benson, Lonsdale & Co (Canada) London, UK Nominee 10 - 10
KB Farmland Trust (Managers} Lid London, UK Dormant - -
Fenchurch Nominees Limited London, UK Nominee - -
Frank Nominees Limited London, UK Nominee - -
KBPB Nominees [id London, UK Nocminee - -
KB Linit Trusts London, UK Dormant - -
KBIM Standby Nominees Lid. London, UK Nominee - -
Langbourn Nominees Ltd London, UK Nominee - -
At 31 December 231,352 231,352
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16. Shares in group undertakings (continued)

The registered office of SG Kieinwort Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) Lid is 18 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, Channel Isiands. The
registered office of SG Kleinwort Hambros Bank (Gibraltar} Lid.is Hambros House, 32 Line Wall Road, Gibrallar. All the other companies are
incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England & Wales. The registered office address of all the UK companies is 5th Floor 8 St
James's Square, Londen, England, SW1Y 4JU. The Company owns 100% of the share capital of all of the above subsidiaries apart from KB
Farmland Trust (Managers) Limited.

The Company owns 75% of the Class ‘A" ordinary shares of Kieinwort Benson Farmiand Trust {(Managers) Limited and 100% of the Class “B*
ordinary shares. Class “8” ordinary shares do not carry voling rights and are not entitled lo participate in any profits that may be resolved to be
distributed.

The Company has no exposure to any unlimited companies or partnerships and has not guaranteed or underwritten any liabilities in these
entities other than disclosed in these financial statements.

16.2. Ownership interest in associates

The Company has a 24.5% holding of the ordinary shares of DAH Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda whose principal
aclivity is private banking, which was purchased for £1.4 m (HKD 18.1 m) on 21 February 1987. The directors have written down the value of
the investment, so the holding is not greater than the value of the net assets. The company’s functional currency is the US dollar and its
principal place of business is Bermuda. The movement in the cost is attributed 1o foreign currency fluctuations.

These investmenis are classified as participating interests, in the directors’ opinion, as the Company has no significant influsnce over their
activities.

17. intangible assets

2019 2018
{in GBP thousands} Goodwill Total Goodwili Softwara Total
Cost
At 1 January 42 300 3,153 45,453 42,300 10,444 52,744
Additions - 3,098 3,098 - 2,480 2,480
Dispcsals - (416) (416) - {9.772) (9.772)
Reversal of prior charge - (465) (465)
At 31 December 42,300 5,370 47,670 42,300 3,153 45,452
Accumulated Depreciation )
At 1 January (5,110} (2,071) (7.181) (5,110) {2,642} (7,752)
Amortisation - (589) (589) - (228) (228)
impairment {37,190) - (37.190) - - -
Reversal of prior charge - 455 465 - 798 798
At 31 December {42,300} {2,195) (44,495) {5,110} {2,071) (7.181)
Net Book Value at 31 December - 3175 3175 37,190 1,081 3z am

In 2018, software and further costs capitalised by the Company as Softwara rejating to the impiamentation of a new core banking sysletn
fotaking £9.7 m were written off.

The Company operales as a single cash-generating unit (CGU), thus the carrying amount of goodwill equates to the intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives allocated to the CGU. Amortisation of goodwill occurred under UK GAAP accounting principles prior to the Company
2015 financial year, under FRS 101 {adopted 1 January 2015) this is no longer amortised.

Intangibles impairment

In accordance with IAS 36 (impairment of Assets), the Company reviewed the carrying values of its intangible assets at 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018. As a result of this review, the Company recognised an impairment charge of Nil (2018: Nil) relating to software that
was previously in use and under development which has either had its expected useful life reduced or, for assets under development, will not
be brought inte use. Judgment has been used by management in determining the length of these remaining useful lives.

In its analysis for the impairment of goodwill the Company has recognised an impairment charge of £37.2m (2018: Nil) during the year based
on the assumptions of assessment. In determining this conclusion, the Company has assumed a revenue growth rate of 5% per annum
{2018: 7%} on average, cost savings of 0% per annum (2018: 4%) on average and a 10.0% (2018: 9.6%) discount rate in its 5-year model.
The revenue assumptions used take into account the recent performance and events and the dramalic fall in market interest rates
experienced to date. These events act to reduce income in the short term and binder longer term growth.
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18. Tangible assets

The Company's tangible assets provide the infrastructure needed to enable the Company to operate and includes computer equipment,
fumiture, fixtures and fittings.

2019 2018

{in GBP thousands) . Right-of-use Computer Fumiture, Total Computer Fumiture, Total

asset - Land hardware fixtures and hardware fixtures and

and buildings fittings fittings
Cost .
At 1 January - 1,520 2,098 3,618 1,520 2,087 3,607
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 as at 343 - - 343 - . .
1 January 2019 '
Additions 4 - - 4 - 11 11
At 31 December 347 1,520 2,098 3,965 1,520 2,008 3,618
Accumulated Depraciation
At 1 January -- {1,417) (1,869) {3,286) (1,240) {1,786) (3,026)
Depreciation (109) (74) Tn (254) (177} (83) (260)
At 31 December {109) (1,491) {1,940} {3,540) {1.417) {1,869) (3,286)
Net Book Value at 31 December 238 29 158 425 103 229 332

Set out below are the carrying amount of lease liabilities(included under 'Other’ in Note 22) and the movements during the period.

{tn GBP thousands)

As at 1 January — effect of adoption of IFRS 16 . 343
Additions -
Accretion of interest (5)
Payments : (1}
At 31 December 2019 337

19. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables consist primarily of advisory and execution fees receivable, and prepaid expenses. The indemnity for foss is due
from KBBL's historic parent undertaking, Commerzbank AG, in respect of indemnities given to cover a proportion of the maximum expected
costs incurred in settling claims against the Company from business arising in prior periods. The liabilities are either settled or recognised in
the subsidiary entities with a respective intercompany payable amount recognised in the Financial Statements of the Company.

{In GBP thousands) ’ 2019 2018
Indemnity for loss 2687 3,004
Accrued income 9,960 6,445
Prepayments 1,084 1,374
Intercompany receivables ' 7.352 12,718
Indirect taxation receivable 1,048 1,556
Due from brokers - 53
Other assets 1,161 1.429
Total 23,292 26,577

Intercompany receivables consist of amounts owed from subsidiary entities.

Trade and other receivables have been assessed for impairment under the simplified approach in IFRS 8. The above amounts are net of
£0.096 {2018: £0.05m) provisions.
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20. Deposits by banks

(In GBP thousands) : 2018 2018
Repayable on demand to Group undertakings 11,540 41,500
Other 3 268
Total 11,543 41,768

21. Customers” accounts
Deposits by custorners are classified as follows:

{In GBP thousands) 2019 2018

Call deposits repayable on demand 1,415,603 1,628,110

Term deposits with remaining maturities: '

- Between 1 day and 3 months 287,148 256,633

- Between 3 months and 1 year 121,270 269,233

- Greater than 1 year 12,208 37,240
Total 1,836,229 2,191,216

22. Other liabilities

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables represents costs that have been billed or are not yet billed or due for payment, but for which the goods or services
have been receivad. Deferred income represents fees received in advance of services being performed.

{In GBP thousands) 2019 2018
Accrued expenses 27,824 38,589
Intercompany payables 1,048 6,830
Personnel expenses 10,100 8,215
Deferred income 2,318 2,344
Other 7,621 4,04C
Total 48,909 ] 60,018

23. Provisions

2019 2018

{In GBP thousands) Onerous Other Total Oneraus Other Total
conlracts contracts

Cost
Al 1 January 2,131 234 2,365 2,131 38 2,167
impact of adopting IFRS9 (Note 28.4) 112 "2
Additions - 567 567 - 86 86
Released (1,210) (26) {1,236) - - -
At 31 December 921 775 1,696 2,131 234 2,365

Onerous contracts
The Company has provided for historical obligations associated with lease contracts for the former KB premises at 14 St George Street, W1S
1FE, London. The legal title to these leases is no tonger held by the Company however the Company is committed to pay the amounts due.

23.1. Expected maturity of provisions

2018 2018

{In GBP thousands) Onerous Cther Total Onerous Other Total
contracts conftracis

Less than 1 year 921 775 1,696 . 234 234

Between 1 and 5 years B - - 2,131 - 2,131

Total 921 775 1,696 2,131 234 2,385
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24, Share capital

2019 2019 2018 2018
{In thousands) Number of Value of shares Number of shares Value of shares
shares {GBP) (GaFy
Authorised
Ordinary shares of £1 each 328,266 328,266 328,266 328,266
Aliotted, calied up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 each 328,266 328,266 328,266 328,266

tn August 2018 an additional £25m share capital was issued to support the capital requirements of the Company in its future plans.

25. Capital management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management policy is to ensure that the Company complies with regulatory capital
requirements. The Company holds investments with strong credit ratings and robust capital ratios in order to support its business and to
maximise shareholder valye.

The Company actively manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities.

The Company's capital is monitored using the supervisary requirements set by the PRA. The PRA issues Individuatl Capital Guidance (ICG")
based on the review of the Company’s capital planning model as evidenced under the Individual Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
("ICAAP™). The ICAAP is teviewed annually by the Company and by exceplion when necessary. At the end of the year the Company's total
capital requirement was £147.65m (2018: £118.9m)

{In GBF thousands) 2019 2018
Own funds 176,630 170,987
Tier 1 capital 176,630 170,987
Common equity tier 1 capital 176,630 © 170,987
Total risk exposure amount 861 ,938 721,897
Buffers
Pilar 1 Requirement 68,955 57,752
Pillar 24, - Static Pension Add-ons 4,400 4,400
Pillar 2A - Individual Capital Guidance (ICG) 28,272 23,678
Total Pillar 2A 32,672 28,078
Pillar 2B - PRA Buffer 12,584 15,015
Pillar 2B - Counter Cyclicat Buffer (CCyB) 11,891 4,508
Pillar 2B - Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) . 21,548 13 536
Total Pillar 2B 46,023 33,059
Total Capltal Requirement 147,650 118,889
Capital Surplus 28,980 52,098

Required pillar 3 disciosures will be published at group level by Société Générale on their website www.societegenerale com.
26. Financial risk management

Risk management and control
The Risk Commitiee assesses the business's strategies and plans from a risk perspective and, in particular, the tolerance for current and
potential risk exposure, The Risk Committee also reviews and recommends actions in respect of oversight, management and controt of risk.

The Risk Commitiee considers the Risk Appetite Statement and recommends it to the Board, 1aking into account the current and prospective
macroeconomic and financial environment. This document outlines the nature and quantum of risk the Company wishes to bear in order to
achieve ils strategic, profitability and growth objectives whilst remaining within regulatory constraints, It also notes the key policies established
by the Company to manage these risks and the approval process governing those policies.
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26. Financial risk management (continued)

Treasury Rules and Investment Mandate
The Treasury Ruies and Investment Mandate outlines the constraints imposed upon the Treasury, in the course of its management of the
liquidity, FX and interest rate risk exposures. The mandate addresses the following:

» definition of structural risks, and the associated limits
* the permitted instruments
= limit management process (i.e. application, renewals and breaches)
= the scope of the Invesiment Portfolios, including:
» eligibility criteria
¢ allocation imits
» other constraints (e.g. macro duration constraints)
* benchmark definitions for each portfolio.

The Company incurs risk positions in the course of managing its day to day business. These include interest rate risk, foreign currency (“FX")
risk and liquidity risk, which are actively managed by the Asset and Liability Management (“ALM™) department, which includes the Treasury
funiction. An analysls of each risk is included below.

26.1. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the mismatch in the interest rate duration of the Campany's funding sources (depositor and shareholder funding)
and its asset profile (client loans and Treasury investment activity), as well as a mix of fixed and variable rate assets and liabilities. This
mismatch is the result of differences in the interest rate and maturity profile of the various interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities.

Interest rate mismatches asscciated with the Company's financial services activities are monitored daily. The exposure to movements in
interest rates is monitored in basis point values to a given rise in interest rates. The given rise in interest rates is calculated as 100 basis
points {1%). Positions are monitored both individually and on an aggregated basis. Positions are monitored against approved limits. These
limits have been assigned and approved on an individual currency and total posilion basis.

The future principal and interest cash flows of each asset ang liability are included based on their present value. The present value of future
cash flows of interest bearing assets and liabilities are sensitive to changes in interest rates and thus this sensitivity represents the direction
and degree of change in the value of a cash flow for a given change in the underlying interest rate.

The aggregate interest rate risk position is actively managed by the Treasury function, which has a real-time view of the position against the
yield curve of each currency in which the Company is active. The interest rate risk positions are maintained within defined sensitivity limits,
which are subject to annual review.

26.1.1. interest rate risk sensitivity
Interest rate sensitivity is determined based on the Company's assets and liabilities at 31 December 2019 and by reference to a movemnent in
market interest rates reasonably possible in the Company's next financial reporting period.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower and this movement applied lo the assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date, the pre-

tax-profit-for the year-ended-31-December 2019 WoUld Fave been £4°8m lower (2018; £0.5 m) which Ultimately would result in £4.0 m {2018:
£0.4 m) post tax profit. This would have mainly resulted from lower interest income on variable rate assels and lower financing costs in
respect of its loans. :

The value represents the potential gain or loss that would be realised over the life of the assets and liabilities if the move in interest rates were

affected and all interest rates and positions remained static for their remaining life. The inverse is equally true for the cument year if interest
rates had been 50 basis points higher.
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26. Financial risk management (continued)

26.1.2. Interest rate maturities

interest rate risk arises in the balance sheet as a result of fixed and variable rate assels and liabilities. Exposure to interest rate movements

arises when a mismatch is created between interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities.

Interest rate mismatthes associated with the Company's financial services activities are monitored daily. The exposure to movements in
interest rates is monitored in basis point values to a given rise in interest rates. The given rise in interest rates is calculated as 100 basis
points (1%). Positions are monitored both individually and on an aggregated basis. Positions are monitored against approved limits. These
limils have been assigned and approved on an individual currency and total position basis.

The future principal and interest cash flows of each asset and liability are inciuded based on their present value. The present value of future
cash flows of interest bearing assets and liabililies are sensitive o changes in interes! rates and thus this sensitivity represents the direction
and degree of change in the value of a cash flow for a given change in the underlying interest rate. Interest rate swaps may be used to
actively manage the interest rate risk positions. The repricing dates of the financials assets and financial liabilities is as follows:

2019
Repricing Dates
(In GBP thousands) Carrying Less than 3 Between 3 and Belween 1 year More than 5 Non-intetes) Total
amount months 12 months and S years Years bearing
Cash and balances with ceniral banks 52,993 52,953 - - - 40 52,993
Placements with, and loans 41,744 41,704 - - - 40 41,744
and advances to othar banks '
Fixed rate - - - - - - -
Variable rate 41,744 41,704 - - - 40 41,744
nvestment securities 846,641 169,622 '128,947 368,619 179,453 - 846,641
Fixed rate 748,499 71,480 128,947 368,619 179,453 - 748,499
Variable rate 98,142 98,142 - - - - 98,142
Loans and advances to customers 1,119,362 548,906 489,315 81,141 - - 1,119,362
Fixed rate - - - - - - -
Variable rate 1,034,187 551,352 482,835 - - - 1,034,187
Total 2,060,740 813,185 618,262 449,760 179,453 80 2,060,740
Loans and deposits due to other 11,543 11,543 - - - - 11,543
banks
Fixed rate 4,253 4,253 - - - - 4,253
Variable rate 7.290 7,290 - - - - 7,290
Loans and deposits due to customers 1,836,229 1,702,108 121,841 12,280 - - 1,836,229
Fixed rate 421,100 286,979 121,841 12,280 - - 421,100
Variable rate 1415129 1,415,129 - - - - 1,415,129
Total 1,847,772 1,713,651 121,841 12,280 - - 1,847,772
!naerest rate derivatives (gross notional 601,689 510,966 4,824 60,860 25,000 - 601,689
inflows
lnieresl) rate derivatives (gross notional 601,689 93,166 15,149 382,018 111,357 - 601,689
outflows)
Net notional inflow (outflow) . 417,800 (10,325) (321,119) {86,357) - -
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26.1.2 Interest rate maturities (continued)

2018
Repricing Dates
{In GBP thousands) Carying Less than 3 Between 3 and Between 1 year More than 5 Nodvinterest Totat
amount months 12 months and 5 yeare Years bearing
Cash and balances with central banks 169,347 165,991 3,343 - - 13 169,347
Placements with, and loans 31,3587 31,357 - - - 31,357
and advances to other banks
Fixed rate - - - - - - -
Variable rate 31,357 31,357 - - - 31,357
Investment securities 1,253,521 384,890 166,375 414,616 287,345 295 1,253,521
Fixed rate 961,037 92,406 166,375 414 616 287,345 295 961,037
Variable rate 292,484 292,484 - - - - 202 484
Loans and advances to customers 1,074,474 1,017,264 4,460 52,750 - - 1,074,474
Fixed rate 58,804 2,045 4,460 52,299 58,804
Variable rate 1,015,670 1,015,218 - 451 - - 1,015,670
Total 2,528,699 1,599,502 174,179 467,366 287,345 308 2,528,699
Loans and deposits due to other 41,768 41,768 - - - - 41,768
banks
Fixed rate . - - - _ - -
Variable rate 41,768 41,768 - - - - 41,758
Loans and deposits due to customers 2,191,216 1,917,843 253,245 20,128 - - 2,191,216
Fixed rate : 528,880 255,507 253,245 20,128 - - 528,880
Vanable rate 1,662,336 1,662,336 - - - - 1,662,336
Total 2232984 1,959,611 253,245 20,128 B - 2,232,984
Interest rate derivatives (gross notional 544,280 16,085 7,408 . - 566,773
inflows) -
Interest rate derivatives (gross notional 34,254 7.951 334,880 189,688 - 566,773
outfiows) -
Net notional inflow {outflow) 510,026 7.134 (327,472) (189,688) - -

The table below summarises the residual contractual maturities and contractual cash flows of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities. The amounts
presented below are inclusive of interest and principal repayments and are shown on an undiscounted basis. Whilst the disclosure is based on contractual
cash flows, there is the possibility that amounts are received earlier than contracted, for example, if a customer repays a lcan earlier, or amounts may be
reccived at a later date, for example, if a deposit is extended.

2019
(tn GBP thousands) Carrying Confractusl Lass than 3 3 and By 1 and & More than 5 Years
amount Cashfiows months 12 months Years
Financial-assets
Cash and balances with central banks 52,993 52,993 50,128 2,825 - -
Derivative assets 7,130 7,130 1,642 £,232 223 33
Loans and advances to banks 41,744 41,744 41,744 - - -
Loans and advances to customers 1,119,362 1,202,110 356,798 168,220 39,368 -
Debt and invesiment securities 846,641 028,243 70,128 169,481 480,352 208,282
Total financial assets 2,068,870 2,232,220 519,920 345,787 520,754 208,495
Financial liabilities
. Deposits by banks 11,543 11,543 11,543 - - -
Customer accounts 1,836,229 1,838,848 1,702,806 123,134 12,908 -
Derivative liabilities 15,833 15,833 6,594 8,662 457 120
Total financial liabilities 1,863,605 1,866,224 1,715,074 131,795 17,375 1,980
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26.1.2 interest rate maturities (continued)

2013

(tn GBP thousans) Camying Contractual Less than 3 3 and tandS | Morethan S Years
amount Cashflows months 12 months Years
" “Financial assets

Cash and balances with central banks 169,347 169,347 166,004 3,343 - -
Derivative assets 12,342 12,343 3,042 2,777 3,815 2,709
Loans and advances to banks 31,357 31,357 31,357 - - -
Loans and advances to customers 1,074,474 1,081,566 280,185 150,500 635,282 15,589
Debt and investment securities 1,253,521 1,355,897 141,969 187,767 696,795 329,366
Total financial assets 2,541,041 2,650,510 622,567 344,387 1,335,892 347,664
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 41,768 . 41,768 41,768 - - -
Customer accounts 2,191,216 2,193,848 1,810,348 261,831 21,669 -
Derivative liabilities 65,049 6,048 2.415 " 3450 183 -
Total financial liabilities 2,239,033 2,241,664 1,954,531 265,381 21,582 -

26.1.3. Fair value hedges

To protect itself against changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities due to movements in interest rates, the Company
enters inte micro fair value hedge relationships as described in Note 3.1.6. The Company primarily designates the benchmark rate as the
hedged risk and, accordingly, enters intc interest rate swaps whereby the fixed legs represent the economic risks of the hedged items,

The following tabie provides information about the hedging instruments included in derivative financial instruments:

2019 2018
{In GBP thousands} Notions!  Camrying amount Carrying amount Notional ~ Carrying amount  Carrying amount
Asseis Liabilities Aszets Liabilities

Micro fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 422 624 a2z 415 528,479 5,408 1,925
At 21 December 422,624 92 415 528,479 6,408 1,925

The beiow table sets out the cutcome of the company's hedging strategy to changes in the fair value of the hedged items and hedging
instruments, used as a basis for recognizing ineffectiveness:

2019
(In GBP thousangs) Gainsi{iosses) Gains/(lozses) attribitable 1o Hedge Ineffectiveness
attributable to hedged hedged risk
risk Hedging instrument
Hedging item
Micro fair value hedge relationship
Interest rate swaps 11,987 (13,213) (1,226)
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26. Financiat risk management {continued)

26.1.3. Fair value hedges (continued)}

2018
{In GBP thousands) Gains/{losses) Gains/(lossas) attributable o Hedge Ineffactiveness
stiributable to hadged hedged risk
risk Hedging instrumeni
Hedging item
Micro fair value hedge relationship
Interest rate swaps {2,146) 2,568 422
The maturity profile of the Company’s hedging instruments used in micro fair value hedge relationship is, as follows:
2019
(In GBP thousands) Less than 3 Between 3 and 12 Batwesn 1 year and Mare then 5 Total
months months S years Years
Fixed rate FVOCI debt instruments
Interest rate swaps - 15,149 334,753 72,722 422.624
2018
{In GBP thousands) Less than 3 Between 3 and 12 Belween 1 year and Mora than 5 Total
months manths 5 years Years
Fixed rate FVOCI debt instruments
Interest rate swaps 34 254 7,951 334,880 189,688 566,773

26.2. Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in foreign exchange rates that could impact the results of operations and the financial
position. The Company's foreign exchange and commodity risk arises from:

= Providing foreign exchange and commodity services 1o customers
* [ts net currency revenue flows from overseas subsidiaries and associated undertakings
» |ts other structural positions (including hedging).

When granting icans, booking deposits or taking positions in investments denominated in a foreign currency, the Company incurs foreign
exchange risk if those positions are not closed by either investing or refinancing those positions in the respective currency, or by contracting
cross currency swaps or foreign exchange forward contracts. The open foreign exchange positions (defined as the present value of the future
cash fiows discounted with the foreign interest rates} are maonitored daily against pre-set limils and form the basis of foreign exchange risk
controlling through the use of foreign exchange derivatives. Treasury dealers are authorized to optimise the hedging of such flows intraday
and are govemned by intraday and end of day exposure limits. The limits are granted by the SG Group Risk Department and reviewed
annually, following review at ALCO.
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26. Financial risk management {continued)

26.2.1. Foreign exchange sensitivity
Foreign exchange sensitivity is determined based on the Company's foreign currency assets and liabilities at 31 December 2019 and by
reference 10 a2 movement in foreign curmrency rates reascnably possible in the Company's next financial reporting period.

A strengthening of GBP against EUR or USD at 31 December 2019 of 1% would have decreased (increased) equity and profit {loss) for the
period by the amounts shown below. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the year ended 31 December 2018. A weakening of the
EUR or USD against the GBP would have had the equal but opposite effect on the amounts shown below.

208 2018

{In GBP thousands) Equity Profitf{loss) for Equity Profit!(loss) for the
the petiod _ period _

EUR (3) (3) (79) (79)

UsD 1 1 (10) (10)

26.3. Credit risk of financial assets
Credh risk is the risk of financial loss arising from the failure of a customer or counterparty to settle financial obligations to the Company as
they fall due. As part of its banking and corporate lending business the Company offers clients a range of ioan facilities.

There is a clearly defined policy and process documented within the Company’s Credit Policy for credit application and approval, credi
administration, daily monitoring and reporting. The daily monitoring of risk exposures for Private Clients is conducted through Prism, a risk
monitoring tool which provides the Credit team with the ability to monitor exposures against collateral daily. The tool recalculates lending
values of market sensilive collateral daily taking account of liquidity, diversification, concentration, qualily and cross currency elements.

The loan to value guidelines for lending against assets are calculated and adopted as part of the Company's credit policy. They have been
calculated using stress testing techniques based on tolerance thresholds set by SG Group with a confidence level of 99.5%. Should the
quality of the counterparty or the Company's collateral detericrate 10 such an extent as to cause concern, the Company's Head of Credit Risk
must conduct an intenm review and apply appropriate rectification measures.

Collateral pledged against loans and advances to cuslomers at the year-end totalled £2,850.3m (2018: £2,627.7m) with £1,727.3m (2018:
£1,553.7m) collateral in excess of loans granted and £88.8m (2018: £4.4m} of loans in excess of collateral.

There are two main periodic reviews of the quality of the entire loan book {as set out in the Company's Provisioning and Credit policies):

= Quarterly Imegular Commitments and Provisioning reviews.
« Monthly Group Executive Risk Committee which includes the specific Credit KRIs.

26.3.1. Credit risk by financial asset class
The following table outlines the maximum credit risk exposure of the Company’s financial assets, net of depreciation and before any bilateral
netting agreement and collateral, including revaluation differences on items hedged or listed at fair value on the balance sheet:

2019
{In GBP thousands) Individuafly Fast due but not Neither past dua Tolal canying Impairment Net Exposure
impaired impaired nor impaired amoun! allgwance
Balance sheet
Cash and balances at central banks - - 52,8963 52,883 . 52,993
Derivative assets - - 7.130 7,130 - 7,130
Loans and advances to banks - - 41,744 41,744 - 41,744
Loans and advances to customers 41,508 393 1,082,149 1,124,050 (4,688) 1,119,362
Debt and investment securities - - B46,641 846,641 (66) 846,575
Trade and other receivables - - 23,530 23,530 - 23,530
41,508 393 2,054,187 2,096,088 {4,754) 2,091,334
Off-balance sheet
Loan commitments granted - - - 47,644 - 47,844
Guarantee commitments granted - - - 34,978 - 34,978
- - - 82,622 - B2,622
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26. Financial risk management (continued)

26.3.1. Credit risk by financial asset class (continued)

2018
(tn GBP thousands) Indmvidualy Past due bul nol Neither past due Total carrying Impairment Net Exposure
impaired impaireq nof impaired ik e
Balance sheet

Cash and balances at central banks - - 169,347 169,347 - 169,347
Derivative assets - - 12,342 12,342 - 12,342
Loans and advances to banks - - 31,357 31,357 - 31,357
Loans and advances o cusiomers 7.797 481 1,070,095 1,078,373 (3,899) 1,074,474
Debt and investment securities - - 1,253,590 1,253,590 (69) 1,253,521
Trade and other receivables 45 8 26,569 26,622 (45) 26,577
7,842 489 2,563,300 2,571,337 (4,013) 2,567,618

Ofi-balance sheet
Lecan commitments granted - - - 62,773 - 62,773
Guarantee commitments granted - - - 52,719 - 52,719
- - - 115,492 - 115,492

Debt securities are classified as fair value through other comprehensive income. The fair value will reflect, among other things. the credit risk
of the issuer. Ali the debt securities are rated by external rating agencies.

Derivatives are measured on a fair value basis and are classified as fair value through profit and loss. The majority of the Company's
derivatives are transacted with SG Group, which has a Credit A rating. Derivatives transacted with clients are frequently secured against cash
depoesits. In Januvary 2019 the Company has moved all of its IRS portfolio to be transacted on a cleared baS|s meaning that the derivatives
are paid in full each day and that credit risk is reduced to almost nil.

The Company recognises that counterparty risk can arise due to the failure of counterparties connected to securities and derivatives
transactions. This risk can arise as defauit risk of a Company's counterparty including failure to pay, inability to replace securities post default
event or the failure of the other parties to the settiement process. The Company manages this risk by straight through processing and delivery
for payment where possible and upgraded controls around settiement only business to reflect counterparty risk in this service offered by the
Company to a very limited number of clients.

The Company's Counterparty risk is captured in Kondor+ and the Risk Department monitors all exposures against limits in Kondor+. There is
a full audit trail within Kondor+ for all captured trades. All limits are maintained within Kondor+ by the Risk Department and Treasury Middle
Office.

The SG Group Risk Department regulardy communicates to the Company's Risk Departmen a list of counterparties and countries prohibited
and "under surveillance”. |n addition to this, the Company’s Risk Department maintains close contact with the SG Group's Risk Department in
order to maintain a close knowledge of the credit strength of counterparties and to remain abreast of any areas of concern from the dedicated
credit analysts. Regular periodic meetings are arranged with the credit analysts in order to consolidate the opinion on our counterparties and
their risk profile.

Expected credit tosses (ECL)

Under IFRS ¢ far the purposes of assessing ECLs, financial assets are assessed as to whether they are classed as Stage 1, Stage 2 or Stage
3.

Exposure classified in staget:

At the mitial recognition date, the exposures are systematically classified in Stage 1, unless they are purchased or originaled credit-impaired
instruments.

Cash and balances at central banks, loans and advances to banks and debt and investment securities are assessed by an SG Group model
which determines the relevant S1 provision for these assets. Due to the high-grade nature of these assets classes in the bank’s current
portfolio, the provision calculated for these assets is immaterial to the financial statements of the Company. Derivatives assets, by their nature
of being classified as fair value through profit and loss are outside the scope of I[FRS9 provisions.

Exposure classified in stage 2:

The Company maintains a watch list to record stage 2 loans and counterparties.
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26. Financial risk management (continued)

26.3.1. Crodit risk by financial asset class (continued)

The Company employs a Watch List approach to the investment book, under which our security pesitions are classified as follows:

» Black - Possible default scenaric. ALCQ is required to consider an impairment or sell order {with clear guidance on expected loss limits);

= Red - Highly sensitive counterparty with particular concems, ALCO is required to consider an impairment and possible sale if market
conditions allow; :

= Amber - Counterparty that Risk and Treasury agree requires énhanced rmonitoring with ALCO attention; and
* Green - No concern.

A pre-ALCO watch list is also maintained, where heightened Treasury and Risk monitoring it a soft or hard limit breach of the credit default
swap (“CDS") threshold is identified by the daily risk monitoring tool.

Loans and advances to cuslomers primarily comprise (i} corporate loans and (i} morigage lending to retail customers. Typically, there is no
external c¢redit rating attributable to these customers; however, such loans are continuously monitored for credit worthiness.

Loans and counterparties are classified to the watch list if the counterparty presents an increased probability of loss 1o the Company, resulting
from the tollowing events:

An exposure with a collateral shortfall (cr margin) not authorized, for which the ratio drawn exposure {or firm commitment) / market
value of the pledged assets is above the liquidation threshold {set-off ratio} for which a margin cal or liquidation have been
triggered,
And/cr, a significani decrease of the value of our collateral (actual or forecasted) when the latter are not liquid,
And/or financial difficulties, significant alteration (actual or forecasted) of the financial condition of the counterparty cr its guarantor,
and therefore of its capacity to meet a margin call and, if applicable, to repay the credit {notably when it is not collaterafized),
And/or if a credit event has been reported, such as:

« An unpaid for more than 30 days and less than 90 days,

. Breach of contractual terms and conditions (such as breach of financial covenants) if the credit is not sufficiently

collateralized.

And/or new operational, regulatory, or legal issues that could endanger the timely enforceability of cur collateral,
Andfor new factors linked to the counterparty, the transaction, or the market environment that could lead to a reputational or credit
risk for the bank.

Cnce any one of these criteria is me, the instrument is transferred from Stage 1 to Stage 2, and the related impairments or provisions are
adjusted accordingly.

Exposure classified in stage 3:

A client is considered credit impaired and it is in Default as soon as at least one of the following events is identified,

Indications of “unlikeliness to pay®. identified credit risk which makes it probable that the bank will be unable to recover all, or part of

the amount owed by the counterparty_under_the-initial-tarms-and-conditions-of-the-loan—agreement due to a deterioration of the

berrower's financial condition.

Arrears payment of more than 80 calendar days {including for real estate loans) on a credit commitment.

Counterparty subject to lega! or organized reccovery proceedings.

Restructured loan: As soon as negotiations begin with the Company and the client on a restructuring, the exposure shall be
classified as Defau't until the restructuring is accepted and documented.

Sale of a credit obligation with a discount of more than 5%.

Fraud and failure to provide information.

Counterparty subject to legal or corganized recovery proceedings (bankruptcy, judicial reorganization or liguidation, safequard
procedure, ad hoc mandate, conciliation procedure to appear before an international court for a legal entity)

Restructured loan: As soon as negotiations begin with SGPB and the client on a restructuring, the exposure shall be classified as
Default until the restructuring is accepted and docurmented. Once restructured, it shall be maintained “in Default”™

Sale by the bank of a credit obligation with a discount greater than 5% on the nominal value should result in the classification in
default of the counterparty to the credit obligation, provided that the discount is assessed to reflect the deterioration of the
counterparty's credit risk profile.

Fraud and failure to provide information.

The concept of Default is therefore based on the failure to comply with a repayment obligaticn, but also on a gualitative assessment of the
borrower's capacity to meet all its financial obligations.
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26.3.1. Credit risk by financial asset class (continued)

The Company applies the impairment contagion principle to all of the defaulting counterparty's exposures. When a debtor belongs to a
company, the impairment contagion principle may also be applied to all of the Company's exposures.

In the case of a retum in Stage 2, the exposures are kepl in Stage 2 during a prebation period before assessing whether they could be
transferred in Stage 1. This probation period in Stage 2 is from 12 months.

Determination of ECL assumptions

For loans and advances to cusiomers and commitments granted, the Company operates rating models provided by the SG Group. These
information sources are first used to determine the PDs within the Company's Basel Ill framework. The intemal credit grades are assigned
based on these Basel |ll grades. PDs are then adjusted for IFRS 9 ECL calculations to incorporate forward looking information and the IFRS 9
Stage classification of the exposure.

The following table details the classifications used by the company and the relevant PD and LGD's for those classifications, as calculated by
the SG Group. These percentages are reviewed on an ongeing basis by the Company to ensure that they are appropriate for the Company.

2019 2018

S1PD Lembard 0.27% 0.16%
Real estate 1.22% 1.14%

Asset-backed 0.54% 0.23%

Non-guaranteed 0.23% 0.22%

51 LGD Lombard 7.60% 7.60%
Real estate 156.30% 15.30%

Asset-backed 13.20% 13.20%

Non-guaranteed 32.50% 32.50%

S2PD 20.00% 20.00%
S3PD 100.00% 100.00%

LGD's for S2 and S3 are calculated on an individual loan basis according to the specific circumstances affecting the client and the Company's
assessment of the recoverability of the loan. This will include things such as collateralisation of the loan, value of the collateral, quality of
collateral, circumstances of the client and other assets of the client.

26.3.2. Concentration risk
Concentration risk in both the investment bock and the Private Client lending book is managed and mitigated by the SG KH Group Large
Exposure policy. Credit risk pertaining to the large exposures for the top 10 clients is assessed at the monthly ALCO meelings.

2674, Liguidity risK of financial assets and liabilities
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot pay its obligations as they fall due.

The Company must always maintain adequate liguidity ,both in amounts and quality, to ensure that there is no significant risk that its liabilities
cannot be met as they fall due. At the same time, the Company must be self-sufficient for liquidity purposes, and remain within both the Board
defined liquidity risk appetite and all reguiatory thresholds. This is maintained by the defined liquidity monitoring processes, the ongoing
review of the suitability of the liquid asset buffer and the liquidity contingency plan ("LCP"), which identifies the activilies, resources and
procedures required in a stress event, and the responsibilities of key personnel. The Company has created a key set of liquidity early warning
indicators with individual owners. The indicators are communicated via an intemal intranet site and updated on a weekly basis with an alert of
any breaches immediately sent as detailed in the LCP and to the ALCO members.

Liquidity risk monitored via various key Early Warning Indicators {*EW!is™) as follows:
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26. Financial risk management (continued)
26.4 Liguidity risk of financial assets and labilities (continued)

a) Liquidity Coverage Ratio (“LCR")
The Company calculates LCR on a daily basis and continues to enhance and develop monitoring of the LCR.

b) Liguidity Break Point ("LBP”}
The Company calculates the LBP which measures the Company's ability to pay debt obligations and its margin of safety. This is the deposit
level at which all net cash capital is wiped out.

c) Deposit Length ratio
The Company monitor the deposit length of the short term deposits as a ratio of the long termn deposits.

Soft limits and hard limits are set for the facilitation of these monitoring. The indicators are circulated via email on a daily basis to
stakeholders. ALCO members are alerted of any breaches immediately :

The liquidity situation of the Company is discussed monthly during ALCO meetings and reported guarterly to the Board. in times of stress, and
as defined within the LCP specific daily liquidity, emergency ALCOs are convened.

Stress Testing

The Company monitors on a daily basis, the expected stressed cash flows over a three-month horizon. The stressed cash flows are based on
the assumptions of two stress testing models. The first model considers the impact of defined stress events, while the second considers those
defined by PRA. |n both cases, the liquidity position must remain at such a level to ensure a positive cash flow for the first three months of the
stressed period. Each model includes three stress scenarios; an idiosyncratic stress scenario, a market-wide stress scenaric and a combined
stress scenario (market wide and idiosyncratic stress combined).

Liquidity monitoring for the Company also includes the analysis of the reverse stress tests framework.
Contractual maturities

The table below summarises the Company’s current (<12 months) and non-current (>12 months) financial assets and liabilities on the basis of contractual

maturity.

018
{In GBP thousands) Camying amount Current {<12 months) Noa-current (>12 months}
Financial assets
Cash and balances with central banks 52,993 52,853 40
Derivative assets 7,130 6.874 256
Loans and advances to banks 41,744 41,744 -
Loans and advances to customers ' 1,119,362 . 502,668 616,694
Debt and investment securities B45 641 227,442 619,199
Total financial assets 2,067,870 831,681 1,236,189
Financial liabilities .
Deposits by banks 11,543 11,543 -
Customer accounts 1,836,229 1,823,949 12,280
Derivative liabilities 15,833 15,256 577
Total financial liabilities 1,863,605 1,850,748 12,857
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26, Financial risk management (continued)

26.4 Liquidity risk of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2018

(in GBP thousands) Carrying amount Current (<12 months) Non-curent (>12 months)
Financial assets

Cash and balances with central banks 169,360 169,360 -
Derivalive assets 12,342 12,342 -
Loans and advances to banks 31,344 31,344 -
Loans and advances to customers 1,074,474 429,158 645,316
Debt and investment securities ’ 1,253,521 315,766 937,755
Total financiatl assets 2,541,041 957,970 1,583,071
Financial liabilities

Deposits by banks 41,768 41,768 -
Customer accounts 2,191,216 2,169,670 21,546
Derivative liabilities 6,049 6,049 -
Total financial liabilities 2,239,033 2,217,487 21,546

26.4.1. Encumbered and unencumbered assets
As part of its treasury operations the Company will sometimes pledge financial assets as collateral or has the ability to pledge its assets

should it need to raise funds,

The table below details which of the Company's financial assets are encumbered or are available to be pledged as coliateral.

2019

Unencumbered

Encumbered Total

(In GBP thousand) Pledged as Available as OCther Cartying
collateral collateral Arncount

Cash and balances at central banks - - 52,993 52,993
Derivative assets - - 7,130 7,130
Loans and advances 1o other banks - - 41,744 41,744
Loans and advances o customers - - 1,119,362 1,119,362
Debt and investment securities - 846,575 - 846,575
Total - 846,575 1,221,229 2,067,804
2018

Encumbered Unencumbered Total

(in GBP lhousands) Pledged as Available as Other Carrying
collateral collateral Arnount

Cash and balances at central banks - B 169,360 160,360
Derivative assets - - 12,342 12,342
Loans and advances to other banks - - 31,344 31,344
Loans and advances to customers - - 1,074,474 1,074,474
Debt and investment securities - 1,253,621 - 1,253,521
Total - 1,253,521 1,287,520 2,541,041
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21. Subsequent events

The COVID situation is evolving rapidly across Europe and the Company has taken a number of steps to minimise risks.

We have put in place the necessary measures 1o ensure business continuity, whilst protecling the health of our staff, suppliers and clients.
Our teams are fully prepared and equipped to work remotely, accessing the Company's systems by means that maintain the confidentiality,
integrity and availability of cur data. Client meetings continue on telephone and video conference where appropriate.

We are also grappling with the market effects of the spread of COVID. The Kleinwort Hambros Investiment Committee is meeting regularly
throughout this period of volatility to deliver the best possible outcomes for our clients. We remain highly vigilant as always and are watching
momentum and other signals to guide our actions in the near-term.

Revenue for 2020 is expected to reduce due to the impact of falling market interest rates on the financial instruments held by the Company.

Credit losses are not expected to significantly increase on client loans as a consequence of the pandemic due to the typically low LTV ratios

for Lombard and real estate lending, and the ability of the Company’s clients to service ioans from other sources of wealth. The Company is’
estimating that income could be £10.8m less for 2020, compared to 2019 as a consequence.

The liquidity and capital positions of the Company remain strong with a liquidity coverage ratio of 248% as at 15 May 2020 and a capital ratio
of 20.65% as at 28 February 2020.

28. Commitments and contingencies

To meet the financial needs of customers, the Company enters into various irrevocable commitments and contingent liabilities. These consist
of financial guarantees, letters of credit and other commitments to lend. Even though these obligations may not be recognised on the
statement of financial position, they contain credit risk and, therefore, form part of the overall risk of the Company.

Letters of credit and guarantees (inciuding standby letters of credit) commit the Bank to make payments on behalf of customers in the event of
a specific act. Guaranlees and standby letters of credit carry a similar credit risk to loans. The values of such commitments are listed below.

28.1. Contingent liabilities:

2018 2018
(In GBP thousanas) Contractual Risk-weighted £ ial Risk-weig
armount amount arnount Amound
Guarantees and assets pledged as collateral security:
- guarantees and irrevocable letters of credit 34,978 23,244 52,719 12,530

Included in the above are guarantees given on behalf of subsidiary undertakings of ENil (2018: £Nil ).

68



{Page €9 of 71)

Notes to the Financial Statements

28. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

28.2. Commitments:

2019 2018
{in GBP thousands) Contractual Risk-weighted Contractua! Risk-weighted
amount amount amount

Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines

Other commitmenits to lend:

Within one year 47,644 11,4 62,773 15,843
Between one and five years - -
Over five years ’ - -
Total 47,644 11,341 62,773 15,843

The credit equivalent and risk weighted amounts have been calculated in accordance with the European Banking Authority guidelines
implemented as part of the CRD V. :

28.3. Capital commitments:
The company does not have any capital commitments (2018: Nil).

28.4. Impalrment on commitments
The table below shows the credit guality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company’s internal credit rating system and
year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances.

2019 2018
{11 GBP th ds) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
Lombard 53,849 11 - 53,960 50,592
Real Estate 21,853 119 - 21,972 52,212
Asset backed - - - - 2,210
Non-guaranteed 6,614 2 B B,616 10,349
Defaulted - - 74 74 -
Total 82,416 132 74 82,622 115,363

2018 2017
{in GBP thousands) Stage 1 Stege 2 Stage 3 Total Total
Lombard 50,592 - - 50,592 43,368
Real Estate 52,212 - - 52,212 76,260
Asset backed 2,210 - - 2,210 -
Non-guaranteed 10,347 2 - 10,349 7.557
Total 115,361 2 - 115,363 127,186
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28. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

28.4 Impairment on commitments (continued)

An analysis of changes in the gross camrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to commitments is, as follows:

2018 2018
{in GBP thousands) Stage 4 Siage 2 Stege 3 Total Total
Exposures at 1 January 62,629 128 16 62,773 127,188
Transfer to stage 2 (30) 30 - - -
Nel commitments originated / (drawn or expired) {15,161) 4 29 (15,128) (11,654)
Exposure at 31 December 47,438 162 45 47,645 115,492

2018 2097
(In GBP thousands) Stage 1 Sage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
Exposures at 1 January 127,186 - - 127,186 169,853
Transfer to stage 2 . (2) 2 - - .
Net commitments originated / (drawn or expired) (11,694) - - (11,684) (42,667)
Exposure at 31 December 115,490 2 - 115,482 127,186
Impairment allowance on commitments

2018 2018

(In GBP thousands) Stage 1 Stage 2 Siage 3 Total Total
Expecled credit lossas as at 01 January 49 - - 45 -
impact of adopting IFRSS - - . - - 112
Increase in provision 29 - - 25 17
Expected credit losses at 31 December 78 - - 78 129

28:570OtheT commitrents and contingencies

in the ordinary course of business, the Company has given letters of indemnity in respect of lost cerlified stock transfers and share
certificates. The conlingent liability afising there from cannot be quantified, but it is not believed that any material liability will arise under these
indemnities.
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29. Related parties

As the Company is a 100% subsidiary undertaking and consolidated financial statements for its ultimate parent, Société Générale SA, are
publicly available, group transactions have not been disclosed pursuant to the exemptlions permitted in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. No
other loans, arrangements or agreements require disclosure under the Companies Act 2006 or under the reguirements of LAS 24 Related
Party Disclosures regarding transactions with related parties, except the following transactions with the Company’s Directors.

29.1. Directors’ remuneration
The directors’ remuneration includes employee benefits such as the provision of motor cars, accommodation, subsidised toans and private
health care insurance, which are all shorl term related.

(in GBP thousands) 2010 2018
Salary and benefits 1.211 1,216
Performance related benefits 532 702
Pension contributions to money purchase schemes 61 58
Total 1,804 1,976

During the year, four directors (2018: four) accrued benefits under the defined contributian pension schems, Four of the current non-execulive
direclors are employed by other entities in the SG Group. Emoluments for these directors are included in the statutory financial statements of
SG and are excluded from the figures above. The Company is not directly charged a specified amount for the services of these directors.

29.1 Director’s remuneration (continued)

Highest paid director

{In GBP thousands) 2018 2018
Salary and benefits 242 281
Performance related benefits 238 244
Perision contributions 1o money purchase schemes 15 -
Total ' 495 525

The accrued pension contribution of the highest paid director as at 31 December 2019 was £nil (2048: Enil).

29.2. Transactions with Directors
The aggregate amounts outstanding under transactions, arrangements and agreements entered into by the Company with directors and

officers were:
2019 2018
Numbar of Amount {In GBP Numbar of Amount (in GBP
parsons thousands) persons thousands)

Directors’ loans - - - N

30. Ultimate parent company

SG Kleinwort Hambros Limited is the direct holding of the company. The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Société Générale
SA which is incorporated in France.

The largest and smallest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is Société Générale SA. The consolidated financial
statements of the group are available from the Company Secretary, Société Générale, 29 Boulevard Haussmann, 75009 Paris, France.
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